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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (“Kingdom” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Year”).

In 2015, the global economic trend was complicated. The
performance of the United States was among the best, the European
Union was recovering modestly while Japan and emerging economies
encountered grave challenges. Commodity prices continued to
fall. The growth rate of the gross domestic product (“GDP”) in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) for the year
2015 was 6.9%, which was the slowest for the past 25 years. China
entered a “New Normal” of “maintaining growth momentum
while transforming economic structure”. The rise in labour and
production costs and the continuous decline in cotton prices
during the Year have posed some challenges to the Chinese linen
textile industry. Nevertheless, linen as an up-and-coming product,
with its natural and comfortable characteristics, continues to be
welcomed by consumers. According to the statistics of the General
Administration of Customs of the PRC, total value of all yarns and
textile products exports dropped by approximately 1.3% in 2015 as
compared with 2014, however, total volume of linen yarn exports
of China for 2015 increased by approximately 6.7% year-on-year,
demonstrating the relative faster growth of the linen yarn industry.
In view of the complicated global economy, Kingdom adopted a
cautiously optimistic approach. The Group has enhanced its internal
management and lowered production costs while expanding its
market. In addition, the construction of the production base in
Ethiopia will satisfy the rising demand for linen yarn in the future.

The European Union market remained stable in 2015, and the Group
tapped into emerging markets such as India and Korea as well as the
PRC to drive its business growth. The Group recorded total exports
of 10,379 tonnes of linen yarn, representing an increase of 13.9%
as compared with that of last year. For the Year, the total revenue
reached its historical high and increased by 12.2% year-on-year to
approximately RMB1.03 billion. Profit attributable to the owners of
the parent amounted to approximately RMB120 million, representing
a stable growth of 9.0% from approximately RMB110 million in
2014. To show the Group’s appreciation to its shareholders for their
trust and support while reserving resources for future expansion, the
board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has recommended
the payment of a final dividend for the Year of HK8.0 cents per
ordinary share.
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The linen industry grew relatively faster, which benefited linen market
players. As an industry leader, the Group is proactively capitalising
on the unprecedented opportunity brought by such market growth.
It has been enhancing its production technologies while expanding
its productivity. The production technology, energy conservation
and reduction of emissions of the third production base in Haiyan
constructed by the Group in 2014 are unparalleled in the industry.
Furthermore, the Group is establishing a new world-class production
base in Ethiopia. The first phase of this production base will have
a planned annual production capacity of 5,000 tonnes of linen
yarn. This project represents a model for international production
cooperation and enjoys various favourable policy supports. The
Group continues to facilitate the construction of the Ethiopian
production base, which is expected to commence production by the
end of 2017.

Thanks to the concerted efforts of Kingdom and its peers, the Chinese
linen yarn industry maintained a stable and relative faster growth.
In September 2015, Kingdom organised the “Linen (Shanghai)
Forum”, in which representatives and leaders of various industry
associations, government officials and leading linen enterprises at
home and abroad were brought together to discuss and explore the
development of the linen industry. Looking forward, Kingdom will
continue to take the lead to foster the sustainable development of the
linen yarn industry with its pursuit of innovation and perfection.

The Company believes that its leading position in respect of markets,
technologies, branding and resources, as well as the competitive
edges of the Group's Ethiopian project in terms of labour and
other key production costs, will lay the foundation for the Group's
sustainable stable growth in the future.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank every
staff for their devotion and contributions in the past year. | would also
like to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support.

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 18 March 2016
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ~ANEE ST AN BFENEBEAREERAE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published Z (FirEE FIHEEZVHRE) ST o
audited financial statements, is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-RALEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1f —T-NmF —E-=F —E--F —T——F
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR

REVENUE KA 1,025,403 914,279 761,915 718,912 710,960
Cost of sales HEKAE (761,358) (669,278) (555,032) (509,612) (482,957)
Gross profit EF 264,045 245,001 206,883 209,300 228,003
Other income and gains Hiplhs R Fa 12,274 14,309 32,056 8,320 9,403
Selling and distribution costs HERD WA (38,687) (37,870) (32,617) (34,358) (30,268)
Administrative expenses TBRAX (55,628) (48,168) (41,042) (39,821) (39,191)
Other expenses Hibfx (4,432) (12,931) (14,587) (3,544) (8,165)
Finance costs AR (13,236) (10,751) (9,551) (12,848) (14,720)
Share of profits and losses of JEAE — B 2 A AR F
an associate LE#E (28) 36 99 (285) 17
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR R 164,308 149,626 141,241 126,764 145,079
Income tax expense FBREY (43,939) (39,149) (40,803) (32,584) (41,940)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 120,369 110,477 100,438 94,180 103,139
Attributable to: JE
Owners of the parent BAREAA 120,369 110,477 100,438 94,180 103,139
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=B=t+-8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

“E-Hf —Z-QNF =Z%-=f =T--f ZT——F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETR AREFT ARETr ARETx

TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 1,599,847 1,490,055 1,314,794 1,149,187 1,046,094
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHEE (555,869) (528,393) (424,819) (326,308) (284,231)
NET ASSETS BEESE 1,043,978 961,662 889,975 822,879 761,863
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”), the GDP growth rate in
China for the year 2015 was 6.9%, the slowest GDP growth rate
for the past 25 years. At the same time, the overall textile industry
in China recorded negative growth in export, the trend of rising
labour and production costs and the continuous drop in cotton
prices in 2015 also posed some challenges to the textile industry.
Conversely, the linen textile industry, in general, was able to maintain
a relatively fast growth in 2015 as consumers were more receptive
to natural products, as evidenced with more pure linen or linen
blended garments available in the market. Together with the recent
improvements in linen fabric weaving technologies, the domestic
market was gradually expanding under bolstered marketing efforts.
According to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, total value of all yarns and textile products exports
dropped by approximately 1.3% in 2015 as compared with 2014,
however, the total volume of linen yarn exports of China for 2015
increased by approximately 6.7% year-on-year. For years, the Group
has been focusing on upholding excellent quality and offering
tailored customer services. As such, the Group has always been a key
partner of major overseas linen fabric and garment manufacturers.
In 2015, the Group's linen yarn exports amounted to 10,379 tonnes
(2014: 9,112 tonnes), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 13.9%, accounting for approximately 32% of the total
linen yarn export from China in 2015, which reinforced the Group’s
leading position as the largest linen yarn exporter in China for 13
consecutive years.

BEENWR DN

E AE]-

BEREAREME (FRDERFEFT DO
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B[R o B - BEE 2o iR E R AR T I F RS BR
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BSHeEREEr — S HE2RA08ES
BREOEER T NETEKO1.3% HE-F
—hEXEATMYAEOERY FFH46.7% &
HLFREERREMNT IR A NRE
ANEEE — H SR ER R 8 S 2 55 i 47 A T RHAD AR
HAECENEEEH —T—RAFEAEEDM
WHOSER0,379ME (ZZ—PO4F :9,112M8) -
Bt EFH4913.9% (S — A FETRBE LM 2+
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P BE SR HI AT o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

The production base in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province (2nd phase
of the Haiyan plant) of the Group commenced formal production in
June 2014, adding an annual production capacity of 5,000 tonnes
of linen yarn to the Group and alleviating the shortage of capacity
to some extent. Benefiting from the enhancement of the Group’s
overall production capacity, revenue of the Group for the year 2015
increased by approximately 12.2% year on-year as compared with
last year to RMB1,025,403,000 (2014: RMB914,279,000). Gross
profit rose by approximately 7.8% year-on-year to RMB264,045,000
(2014: RMB245,001,000). As a result of the offset between the
rise in raw material costs and savings on labour and energy
costs through better operating efficiency relating to the Group’s
continuous improvement projects, gross profit margin stood at 25.8%
(2014: 26.8%). Profit attributable to owners of the parent reached
RMB120,369,000, representing an increase of approximately 9.0%
from RMB110,477,000 in 2014. Net profit margin decreased slightly
to 11.7% (2014: 12.1%) but the basic earnings per share increased to
RMBO0.19 (2014: RMB0.17). To reciprocate the shareholders for their
continuous support for the Group while reserving resources for further
expansions, the Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the Year (2014: HK7.5
cents per ordinary share).

Major Markets and Customers

Being the largest linen yarn exporter in China, the Group has a
sales network covering over 20 countries and regions around the
world. In order to seize market opportunity rapidly, keep abreast
of market trends and deliver comprehensive and efficient services,
the Group has established footprints in major overseas linen textile
and consumer markets. The Group currently has one subsidiary
in Italy and five agencies in Turkey, Portugal, India and Korea.
The Group’s subsidiary in Italy keeps its own stocks so that it
can serve the immediate needs and tighten the co-operation with
high-end clients in Europe. In 2015, overseas sales amounted to
RMB666,473,000 and accounted for approximately 65.0% of the
Group’s overall revenue. In particular, revenue from European
Union countries amounted to approximately RMB258,824,000,
accounting for approximately 25.2% of the Group’s total revenue,
while revenue from non-European Union countries amounted to
approximately RMB407,649,000, accounting for approximately
39.8% of the Group’s total revenue. During the year under review,
Italy remained the largest export market of the Group and accounted
for approximately 27.6% of its total export revenue, followed by, in
descending order, India, Korea, Turkey, Portugal and Japan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

While the overseas markets are developing steadily, the domestic
linen textile market has remained robust in recent years. Domestic
sales increased by approximately 8.6% during the Year to
RMB358,930,000, accounting for approximately 35.0% of the
Group's total revenue. In light of the increasing income level, there
have been fundamental changes in the consumption patterns of the
general public in China. Consumers’ concerns have shifted from pure
practicality to quality and the ability to reflect their personal taste.
Linen textiles are not only anti-bacterial and comfortable, but also
highly environment-friendly in their production process. Therefore,
linen textiles perfectly suit the taste of new-generation consumers
who look for environment-friendly and sustainable products. Many
leading domestic and overseas trend-setting brands and fast-moving
fashion brands have now embarked on their own linen selections.
For example, a famous Japanese brand has not only launched a linen
garment line, but also introduced a tracking system for the use of its
raw materials to monitor their quality and environmental friendliness
together with its consumers.

Sales Analysis by Domestic and Overseas Markets

FY2015

“E-IEHHEE
RMB’000 %
ARETFT %
China H 358,930 35.0%
European Union B 258,824 25.2%
Non-European Union BB 407,649 39.8%
Total Revenue BRA 1,025,403 100.0%

Raw Material Procurement and Related Strategies

During the year ended 31 December 2015, prices of fibre flax, the
major raw material of linen yarn, maintained a steady growth. The
Group mainly sources its fibre flax from well-established origins
such as France, Belgium and the Netherlands. Being one of the
largest buyers in these regions, the Group enjoys strong bargaining
power when dealing with suppliers. Furthermore, the Group has
formulated systematic procurement strategies under which the Group
will procure according to the level of fibre flax harvest, the Group’s
inventory level and the market prices of fibre flax so as to stabilise its
raw material costs, overall market demand and supply as well as the
price fluctuations of raw materials.

BEENWR DN
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Year-on- Year-on-

year year

change change

FY2014 in revenue in revenue

KA 'ON

“E-NERHREE RESH RELH

RMB000 % RMB000 %

AREFT % ARETFT %

330,403 36.1% 28,527 8.6%

251,538 27.5% 7,286 2.9%

332,338 36.4% 75,311 22.7%

914,279 100.0% 111,124 12.2%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

Apart from sourcing raw materials abroad, the Group also has a raw
material production base in Yili, Xinjiang mainly for the production
of organic flax. It currently has an annual production capacity of
approximately 400 tonnes. Going forward, the Group will continue
to look for other suitable flax cultivation bases in other regions with
the aim of further stabilising the price fluctuations and supply of raw
materials.

Production Bases and Productivity

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had three productions bases
in China. The one in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province has an annual
production capacity of 6,000 tonnes, and its utilisation rate for
the Year was 100%. The other two bases are located in Haiyan
County, Zhejiang Province, among which the second phase of the
Haiyan plant commenced production in June 2014, contributing an
additional annual production capacity of 5,000 tonnes to the Group.
Together with 7,000 tonnes capacity of the first Haiyan plant, the
current designed annual linen yarn production capacity of the Group
amounts to 18,000 tonnes.

The production base in the second phase of the Haiyan plant is
equipped with the latest management systems, technologies and
equipment, the combination of which has brought about a smooth
operation and has reduced unnecessary procedures and wastage of
raw materials, thus improved overall production efficiency. Compared
with the previous two production bases, the new one is also further
equipped with an energy conservation system. Since wet spinning
processes are used in linen yarn spinning, water management is the
key to costs reduction. The energy conservation system can collect
condensed waste water produced during the linen yarn production
processes while recovering waste heat from the boilers. The new
production base also utilises an efficient electric motor power saving
system provided by a well-known German Company. These systems
have not only reduced the production costs of the Group, but also
laid a solid foundation of profit growth for the Group in the long
run. For further details about the measures taken by the Group in
relation to environmental protection, please refer to the separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group for the
Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In addition to the aforesaid, the Group is also committed to investing
in Ethiopia for new production facilities and secured 300,000 square
meters of land in Adama Industrial Park, Adama, Ethiopia. The
phase one development will further boost 5,000 tonnes of annual
production capacity to the Group. The Board believes that the federal
government of Ethiopia is keen to develop the Kingdom Linen Yarn
Factories project into one of the model projects of the “One Belt,
One Road” initiative in Ethiopia. The Chinese government also
encouraged manufacturers to expand overseas by facilitating political
risk insurance coverage by state insurance company. It is expected to
generate savings on land lease, labour, energy and tax for the Ethiopia
project and possible exemption of quota and custom duty to almost
every country in the world when exporting linen yarn manufactured
in Ethiopia. The Ethiopia production facility is expected to be put in
operation around end of 2017.

RELEEN

Existing production bases

1st phase of the Haiyan Plant, L& 5 E R —

Zhejiang Province

Rugao City, Jiangsu Province TEA MR

WL EBHEmE — B
(ZZE—HFRARE)

2nd phase of the Haiyan Plant,
Zhejiang Province (commenced
production in June 2014)
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Patents, Awards and Recognition

The Group continued to invest in technology and innovation and as
at 31 December 2015, the Group owned 49 registered patents and
there were another 14 patents applications pending formal approval
by relevant authorities.

Further, “KINGDOM” was also awarded “Zhejiang Top Export Brand”
by the Department of Commerce of Zhejiang Province, as a result
of the Group’s strategy of building the brand image and enhancing
brand value. In addition, the Group was awarded Technological
Innovation Team of Key Entreprises in Jiaxing City and National
Leading Enterprise for Expanding Domestic Demand in Linen
Industry.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group’s revenue exceeded RMBT1 billion
in Company’s history and increased to approximately
RMB1,025,403,000, representing an increase of approximately
12.2% vyear-on-year (2014: RMB914,279,000). The increase was
mainly due to the expansion of the Group’s production capacity after
commencement of the production of the second phase of the Haiyan
plant in June 2014.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the Year, the Group's gross profit increased to RMB264,045,000,
representing an increase of approximately 7.8% year-on-year (2014:
RMB245,001,000). Gross profit margin for the Year stood at 25.8%
(2014: 26.8%) as a result of the offset between the increase in raw
material costs and savings on energy and direct labour costs through
improvement in operation efficiency projects.

Other Income and Gains

For the Year, other income and gains are mainly represented by
various government grants which amounted to RMB6,695,000
(2014: RMB10,211,000), interest income of RMB2,912,000 (2014:
RMB946,000) and net exchange gain of RMB2,270,000 (2014: Nil).
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, the Group's selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB38,687,000 (2014: RMB37,870,000), which
accounted for approximately 3.8% (2014: 4.1%) of the Group’s
revenue. The decrease in selling costs as a percentage of revenue in
2015 was mainly due to a decrease in transportation costs as a result
of the increase in products being sold to non-European countries like
Korea and India with shorter distance and shipped from a closer port
in Zhejiang Province where the Group'’s factories are located instead
of shipping out from Shanghai.

Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB55,628,000 (2014: RMB48,168,000),
representing an increase of approximately 15.5% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase of administrative
expenses was mainly due to the increases in personnel costs of
RMB1,135,000, research and development costs of RMB462,000,
office expenses of RMB860,000, entertainment expenses of
RMB447,000, bad debts of RMB1,166,000 and equity-settled share
option expenses of RMB1,636,000.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group mainly represent the loss on derivative
financial instrument, principally includes forward currency contracts
entered into by the Group to manage foreign currency exposures, of
RMB2,258,000 (2014: Nil) and a loss on disposal of fixed assets of
RMB771,000 (2014: RMB941,000).

Finance Costs

For the Year, finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB13,236,000 (2014: RMB10,751,000), representing an increase of
approximately 23.1%. The increase in finance costs was mainly due
to the increase in average outstanding loan balance during the year
under review and less interest costs capitalised in 2015. More interest
costs were capitalised for the construction of the second phase of
Haiyan Plant in 2014.
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Share of Profits and Losses of an Associate

For the Year, share of loss of Huaning Flax Electronic Business
(Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. CIER L E FE AR 2 7)) (“Huaning
Flax”), an associate established on 28 December 2009 in China
principally engaging in sale of linen raw material products and
provision of transaction services, up to the date of disposal on
30 June 2015, was approximately RMB28,000 (2014: profit of
RMB36,000).

Due to the tightening up of the relevant regulation of online trading
by the competent authorities, Huaning Flax had been dormant and as
a result, the investment in Huaning Flax had been disposed of during
the Year.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

During the Year, the Group recorded a profit attributable to
owners of the parent of approximately RMB120,369,000 (2014:
RMB110,477,000), representing an increase of approximately 9.0%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's intangible assets were
mainly sewage rights granted in 2012 for a term of 20 years, which
amounted to RMB9,083,000 (2014: RMB9,606,000). Intangible assets
are subject to amortisation based on their useful lives. For the Year,
amortisation of intangible assets was approximately RMB606,000
(2014: RMB606,000).

Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2015, trade and notes receivables of the Group
increased by approximately 31.7% to RMB306,821,000 (2014:
RMB232,922,000), the average accounts receivable turnover days
increased from 79 days as at 31 December 2014 to 96 days as at 31
December 2015 due to increase in sales volume for the month of
December 2015.

Trade and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2015, trade and notes payables of the Group
reduced significantly by approximately 35.2% to approximately
RMB98,048,000 (2014: RMB151,200,000). There were additional
purchases of raw materials in December 2014 to ensure stable
supply. The average accounts payable turnover days decreased from
73 days as at 31 December 2014 to 60 days as at 31 December
2015.

2015 Annual Report —E—HF &

B —EEgE QRN RER
FEREIEBLSATIIEREME FEBSER
~A)([ERT]) BB A AR28,0005T (=
T4 BRI ARE36,0007T) o 5B & A AR
—ETEAF+ AT N\BRFREKY - HEL
EAH (M _ZT—RHFAAZTHE)NETEEKA
SHE it RAE G R IRER SRS -

MR T ERBKES LB SNRERM - MERE
REEE R MREREMOKREENFALE -

BREHEE AEGER

FR - ANEBHEARES AELRFERXF R
HRHA9.0%Z= 4 A R#120,369,0007C (ZZF— Y
F£: AR¥110,477,0007T) ©

BEEE

R-E—RAF+-_A=+—"H AEBENEFE
EFZAR T —TFERAH0FMHESE:
THEAEARY9 083,000 (ZE—NF: ARE
9,606,0007T) cEF EERE A (FHFH#EHE-
FA-EEEEBENABAREG606,000T (ZF
— P4« AR¥606,0007T) ©

ERESERAREREE

RZE—RAE+_A=+—HBH AREENE
WE SGEFRREWEEREINNI.7%E AR
306,821,0007C ( —ZF — U4 : AR¥232,922,000
L) MERZE AT+ AMEE LA B
EXTHRAERAHE —_E—NE+-_A=+—H
H79RENE—E—AF+-A=+—HH/96H °

ENESRIARENERE

R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H AEBENESEZ
SEFRRENEBERNER D 435.2%EH AR
98,048,0007T ( —=Z — W4 : A R%151,200,000
) o AEER T —NE+ - AEMNKBEM
B ERBEME - ENERFHREAHHE -
E-—NFE+-_A=+—HHB3ERLE-ZT—H
F+-A=+—HHM60H°



Management Discussion and Analysis

Interest-bearing Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans amounted to approximately RMB368,033,000 (2014:
RMB280,875,000), representing an increase of approximately 31.0%,
mainly due to the additional working capital requirement of the
Group and the need for additional capital resources for production
facilities expansion purposes.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has net current assets of
approximately RMB429,833,000 (2014: RMB399,561,000). The
Group financed its operations with internally generated resources
and bank loans during the year ended 31 December 2015. As at
31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB237,214,000 (2014: RMB217,185,000).

The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately 179.1% (2014: 186.1%). Shareholders’ fund
of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB1,043,978,000 (2014: RMB961,662,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank loans repayable
within 12 months from the statement of financial position date of
approximately RMB368,033,000 (2014: RMB230,875,000) and did
not have any long-term loans (2014: RMB50,000,000). Together they
represented a gross debt gearing (i.e. total borrowings/shareholders’
funds) of approximately 35.3% (2014: 29.2%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, outstanding contractual capital
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property,
plant and equipment not provided for in the annual financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB97,230,000 (2014:
RMB32,832,000). There was no capital commitment authorized but
not contracted for as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB70,000,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2014: Nil).
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the interest-bearing bank loans were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments, inventories and pledged deposits of the Group with
carrying amounts of RMB70,282,000 (2014: RMB107,437,000),
RMB28,598,000 (2014: RMB29,248,000), RMB40,000,000 (2014:
RMB40,000,000) and RMB41,511,000 (2014: RMB29,751,000),
respectively. In addition, pledged deposits with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB10,300,000 (2014: RMB13,795,000) was
pledged to secure notes payable and the rest of RMB8,540,000 (2014:
RMB25,640,000) was pledged to secure forward contracts.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, United
States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange rate
changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and managed
appropriately. Currently, the Company also has certain foreign
currency forward contracts entered into by utilising its credit line,
and derivative financial instruments of approximately RMB2,258,000
was recognised by the Group as a current liability as at 31 December
2015 (2014: current asset of RMB2,244,000).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 2,598 employees
(2014: 2,538 employees). Total staff costs incurred for the Year
increased by approximately 17.1% to RMB164,491,000 (2014:
RMB140,494,000), which was mainly due to salary increment
and additional headcounts for the new factory which commenced
operation in June 2014.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The Group
is required to make contributions to a social security scheme in
China. Moreover, the Group and its employees in China are each
required to make contributions to fund pension insurance and
unemployment insurance at rates specified in the relevant laws and
regulations in China.
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The remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Board with reference to the employee’s respective
qualification, experience, responsibilities and contributions to the
Group, as well as the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a
similar position. The remunerations of the Directors are determined
by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company
with the mandate given by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The Group also
provides both internal and external training programmes for its
employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, and other employees
of the Group who have contributed to the success of the Group’s
operations. During the Year, 22,250,000 options were granted under
the Scheme. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
24 August 2015 for details.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of linen yarn
and selling the products to over 20 countries. Overseas sales are
invoiced in United States Dollars, except sales by our subsidiary
in Italy which are invoiced in Euro. Domestic sales in China are
invoiced in Renminbi. Raw materials (fiber flax) are imported from
Europe. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
include the demand for linen yarn, stable supplies of raw materials,
continuous decline in cotton price, depreciation of United States
Dollars against Renminbi, and the execution risk of the new
expansion project in Ethiopia.

OUTLOOK AND PLANS

Attributable to a wide range of characteristics such as breathable,
comfortable, environmental-friendly and fashionable, linen textiles
are more recognised and welcomed by consumers.

According to a research report in France titled “The Linen Shirt
Eco-Profile” based on the Life Cycle Assessment of a linen shirt
compared to the same in cotton, linen shirt consumed only 1/4 of
the water used for its life cycle compared with that of a cotton shirt.
Furthermore, cotton shirt posed 6 times more toxic risk towards
aquatic ecosystems than a linen shirt did. With the increasing
awareness of corporate social responsibilities and sustainable
products, demands from leading fashion brands for environmental
friendly and sustainable products, like linen textile products, will
continue to grow and remain robust in future. Driven by rising
demand for linen yarns from international leading fashion brands and
expansion in domestic consumption, the relatively fast growth of the
linen market has provided unprecedented opportunities to the Group.
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However, the slowest economic growth in China for the past 25
years, a contraction of total textile export value in China in 2015,
together with the implementation of the Trans-Pacific Partnership
(TPP) spearheaded by the United States, and continuous decline of
cotton price, also poise significant challenges to the Group.

The Group’s plan to expand into Ethiopia, however, will allow the
Group with an upper hand to overcome with those challenges as
compared with its competitors. Expanding the Group’s production
facilities to Ethiopia not only helps save land lease cost, labour cost,
energy cost and tax, but also allows us to benefit from operating in
Ethiopia, one of the beneficial countries under the African Growth
and Opportunity Act (AGOA), a United States Trade Act which
provides duty-free and quota-free treatment for eligible apparel
articles made in qualifying sub-Saharan African countries, including
Ethiopia.

In addition, knit fabric and woven fabric containing 51% or more by
weight of flax are classified as “Short Supply List of Products” under
TPP that is exempted from the “yarn forward” requirement for textile
products, hence the adverse effect of TPP on our Group should be
minimal.

The Ethiopia project, which will be equipped with world-class
advanced technologies, has a planned site area of approximately
300,000 square metres and will be constructed in three phases. The
first phase will have a production capacity of 5,000 tonnes of regular
linen yarn. The first production facility in Ethiopia is targeted to be put
in operation around the end of 2017. As the international community
is advocating the development of Africa, textile products made in
Ethiopia will be eligible for duty-free and quota-free treatments if
such products are exported to countries such as the United States
and the European Union. These treatments will greatly enhance the
competitiveness of the Group’s products in overseas markets, thereby
paving the way for its market expansion.
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In addition to setting up production plant in Ethiopia, the Group has
also made tremendous effort to optimise the production efficiency
of the production base in Rugao and the first phase of the Haiyan
Plant. With a series of measures ranging from technical upgrade
to production automation, the labour costs and safety hazards of
production lines have been further reduced. Production capacity
optimisation projects are being carried out in these two production
bases progressively. Through scientific management process over
raw material procurement, production, quality checks, order
management, sales, exports and finance, their cost structures are
refined and the Group’s sustainable development is secured.

Looking forward to 2016, leveraging its headquarters in China,
the Group will continue to explore and penetrate the domestic
market and promote the use of linen fabrics so as to tap into the
enormous market of China which has 1.3 billion of population. With
respect to the overseas market, the Group will further strengthen its
communications and interactions with stakeholders of other linen
textile production and consumption regions through organising
exchanges and conferences, and participating in product and
technology exhibitions. Such initiatives are expected to reinforce
the Group’s relationship with its clients, strengthen its brand image,
further reinforce the Group’s leadership in the industry and secure
mutual growth in both the domestic and overseas markets.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ren Weiming ({E#E83) , aged 56, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and making decisions on the business
development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren has worked in the silk
and textile industry since 1979. He has been the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom
Creative”), a company which is owned as to 67.12% by Mr. Ren
since 2000. Mr. Ren started to engage in the linen yarn manufacturing
business through Haiyan Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd. (“Haiyan Ziwei”) in
December 2001 as its director. He joined the Group in March 2003
when the first operating member of the Group, Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax
Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. He obtained various
awards including National Township Entrepreneur awarded by the
Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC, National Excellent Young Factory
Manager and Zhejiang Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur. He was
representative of the 9th and 10th National People’s Congress of
Zhejiang Province. Mr. Ren is currently the vice president of China
Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association and the vice-president of The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. He is also a director
of Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited (“Kingdom Investment”)
with discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Ren is also
a director of Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd and Huitong Financial Leasing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd..

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yueming (JLE283) , aged 54, is an executive Director. Mr.
Shen is the director and general manager of Zhejiang Jinyuan and
Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Jinyuan”) and a director of
Haiyan Ziwei, all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Shen is responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of
the Group and also takes part in the decision making of the Group.
He is a director of Kingdom Creative and Huitong Financial Leasing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Mr. Shen joined the Group in March 2003.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (5R7%632) , aged 49, is an executive Director.
Mr. Zhang is the director and financial controller of Zhejiang Jinyuan
and Jiangsu Jinyuan. He is also a director of Kingdom Creative and
Huitong Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Before joining the
Group in 2003, Mr. Zhang was the assistant to the general manager
and the head of capital clearing division of Kingdom Creative from
2000 to 2002.

2015 Annual Report —E—HF &

EITERYITES

EHAXRE - BFEA TR AREIERITE
E-EELBEAEEVEERE YRAKE
EBRBRABNRRA-EEEB-NENFRE
REGEARHBITE- BB ST FREDH
TEEAERMARAR ([RZAXE] —KaE
FTEREA67.12%ERMNTE)) TRHRAKLIE - FEHE
THERBTEMAERAR (BERE])NES
FRERTTE—FT+-ARBRRERET MY
X¥B-BER_EE=F=A (ALK EEHEE
RERRNIZTEMARRAR (DINTET]) K
TZE)MAREE - REESHFZRIE BT
HEXHM2EHECERR 2BEEFETFHER
NMIEEFERLLEE -BANIAENENRSE
TREARKRAGRKR -EXLER AP EMA T
EheReRkBEAMBHERER - RIEE
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited ( [ Kingdom
Investment | ) VE S - ZARIRAR RN FHESE
RIEFE S L AE GROIEXVERE2 R B35 B IRA
TRENER EAEERTARERITRNA
RARIMERMEMEE (LB)ERARES-

HITES

LRALE RERA TR AITEF LLLEN
AT IHETEMERAR (NTHF S
TEBEERRKE U REBEEBNES %5
RAEHHR/RARTNEZENBAR LEERE
AEEARELEREEEE NM2EAKERK-
FRATZEAXMEARENEE (LB)BRAA
EX LAEER _TE=F=ZAMALER-

HITES

RBEXEE REWUT R HITEF RELLER
NI T RIHETNEE RV ERE - KRR
NRTEAXMNEEREHEE (LB ARRAE
Z-R-ZBT=FENMALKBZH  REER-F
TEFE_TT_FREEFMENRLENIER



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shen Hong (L% ) , aged 49, is an executive Director. Ms. Shen
is the assistant management controller of the Group. She completed
her professional accounting studies at Zhejiang Long March Finance
School in the People’s Republic of China in July 1994 and has more
than 20 years of experience in finance-related area. Ms. Shen is a
director of Kingdom Creative. Before joining the Group in March
2003, she worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of finance
management department.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (Z2&48) , aged 66, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of
linen and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan was a member of the 9th
and 10th Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference
and vice-chairman of Po Leung Kuk from April 2010 to March
2012. He was the president of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Ltd. from September 2009 to August 2011 and has been
appointed as the permanent honorary chairman of The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011 and a director of
HuaQiao University in 2002. On 22 November 2011, he became a
member of the Election Committee of the Chief Executive Election of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the Group
in September 2004. He is also the chairman of the board of directors
of Millionfull International Co., Ltd (“Millionfull International”) which
has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a
director of Huitong Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing (#1855 ) , aged 63, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Tse joined the Group in May 2009. He is currently an
independent business consultant and investor. Mr. Tse was previously
employed under various banking titles at The First National Bank
of Chicago (now part of JP Morgan Chase, a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange) from 1975 to 1980, and subsequently as a
director of Hill Samuel Merchant Bank (now part of Lloyds Bank plc,
a company quoted on the London Stock Exchange) until 1987. He
was appointed as the managing director of Tractebel Pacific Limited
in 1987 and remained full time in this position until 1993. Since
1994. Mr. Tse has worked as an independent business consultant for
over 20 multinational companies on different assignments. He has 20
years of experience in advising European and US companies on joint
ventures in China and South East Asia. Among his various duties, Mr.
Tse is also a senior advisor of Caledonia Investments plc, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. He obtained bachelor and
master’s degrees in Engineering from the University of Cambridge in
the United Kingdom and a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Chicago in the United States.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Donghui (#5 % #&), aged 70, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Yang has been working in the China National
Textile and Apparel Council (formerly known as the China Textile
Industry Department and China Textile General Chambers) from
1977 and is currently a consultant of this organisation. He has been
the honorable president of the China Home Textile Association since
1999 and is currently a consultant of Environmental and Resources
Conservation Promotion Committee. He was an independent director
of Hunan Mendale Hometextile Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002397), a
company listed on the small and medium enterprise board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“SZSE SME Board”), from 5 March 2007
to 28 June 2012; an independent director of Luolai Home Textile Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 002293), a company listed on SZSE SME Board
from 7 July 2007 to 14 November 2013; an independent director of
Zhejiang Golden Eagle Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 600232), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from 19 June 2008 to 28
May 2014 and a non-executive director of Billion Industrial Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2299), a company listed on Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from
17 September 2012 to 19 March 2014. Mr. Yang joined the Group
in November 2006. He graduated from the Department of Chemical
Engineering of Tsinghua University in the PRC in 1970.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Ying Kit ( 2I2%4¢) , aged 42, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lau is currently the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 03683), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lau is also an independent non-executive director
of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3663),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 8099),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. He is also a director of Adex Mining Inc. (Stock Code:
ade), a listed company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from
the City University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in
financial and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in November 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Z&{5) , aged 42, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 10 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan Capital
Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 229), Wuzhou International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1369) and Huiyin Smart Community
Co., Ltd. (formerly Huiyin Household Appliances (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd) (Stock Code: 1280), companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo also has three years of experience in
the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Lo is a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained
his bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University of British
Columbia in Canada in 1995. He joined the Group in May 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy (BR1=% ), aged 47, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in accounting and the financial sector. From
July 2004 to January 2014, he was the group financial controller
and company secretary of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 157), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, responsible for financial planning and monitoring. Prior to
July 2004, he worked in an international accounting firm and served
senior financial positions in a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market and a renowned German exhibition company. Mr. Chan
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a holder of Practitioner’s Endorsement certificate issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He graduated from the
University of Hull in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree
in economics and accounting in 1992 and graduated from the Ivey
Business School with Western University (formerly Richard Ivey
School of Business with University of Western Ontario), Canada with
an Executive MBA in 2008. Mr. Chan joined the Group in January
2014.
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It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the
affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 70.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 4 to 5 and pages 9 to 21 respectively of
this annual report. There have been no major events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the Year. An indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business can be found
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary on page 8 and Financial Review sections from pages 14 to
18 respectively of this annual report.

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. In the pursuit of excellent operating results, the Group
also puts a lot of effort into sustainable development. For example,
Kingdom factories proactively adopt all kinds of environmental
protection and energy conservation equipment, such as re-modelling
of energy consuming equipment and installing production monitoring
systems, so as to maximise the reduction in energy consumption.

For details of the Group's performance on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) aspects including relationships with various
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to the Group's
separate ESG report for the Year.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the Board held on 18 March 2016, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per
ordinary share of the Company for the Year. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, will be paid on or before 15 July
2016 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 17 June 2016.

None of the shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 74.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB642,020,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB643,620,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately RMB474,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB312,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB69,410,000. Details of the movements are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Directors were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)

Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Ms. Shen Hong (appointed on 18 March 2016 and
appointment became effective on 22 March 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing (tendered resignation on 18 March 2016
and resignation to take effect from 30 June 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Donghui

Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles of Association (the “Articles”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years and be eligible for re-
election. In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. Zhang
Hongwen, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Yang Donghui shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Two of the retiring Directors, Mr. Zhang Hongwen and Mr.
Lo Kwong Shun Wilson being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr.
Yang Donghui had informed the Company that he has elected not to
offer himself for re-election as a Director at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and accordingly will retire as a Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Yang has confirmed that he
has no disagreement with the Board and that there are no matters that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in relation to
his retirement.

Report of the Directors
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As Mr. Lau Ying Kit had been serving as an independent non-
executive Director for nine years in November 2015, pursuant to
Code provision A.4.3 of Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Lau was re-elected as
independent non-executive Director at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 18 May 2015 pursuant to the requirement of
code provision A.4.3 of the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year except as disclosed under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” below and note 33 to the financial
statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto; provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers” liability insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the directors and officers of the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

The remunerations of the senior management of the Company, during
the Year fall within the following bands:

RMBO - RMB1,500,000 AR®omTE AR®1,500,0007T

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 24 to 28.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO, which were recorded or required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

EERBESTRAERRSG HERGOK
ESHEANEERAXR

R-FB-—RAF+-_A=+—H EFRKFNH
BARKRRARREMBZE (EELZHRYE
fBl) BB - AR D MBS T A REZ 5
K GPIFE3521EE L AR BCALGREFE
HY B RO SIR IR T AR B B S+ PR B Ay T 31T
AEFETESFXHNEFEESTRI ([1F2ESR]) A
HMEARNRE LB FrE RN T

RRRRG (RG] WEFRE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

BREMEIETEER
Approximately
Total percentage of
Personal Corporate number of issued share
Name of Director EEpE interests interests Shares held capital (%)
(Note 1)
EERITRA
fBARER fEEZ FRROLH BOEIL%)
(Hiit1)
Mr. Ren Weiming ERALE 12,072,000 290,244,000 302,316,000 48.01
(Note 2)
(Hiz2)
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BEBLE 324,000 67,000,000 67,324,000 10.69
(Note 3)
(Hat3)
Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing HEBEE 17,550,000 - 17,550,000 2.79
Notes: Ve
1. The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the 1, I E B E XN ENEEN RS-

beneficial shareholders.
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2. Mr. Ren Weiming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment (BVI) (as defined below). Mr. Ren
therefore holds a controlling interest in Kingdom Investment (BVI)
and is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Kingdom Investment (BVI).

3. Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, hold approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of the
issued share capital of Millionfull International (as defined below) and
50.22% and 22.33% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company
Limited, respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in
both Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.29%, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares, i.e.
0.35%, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Share options
During the Year, no share options were granted to the Directors or any
of their associates.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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#951.00%%23.00%H8) B (TR AN - BN B R
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LERERARFEEHER REZFR
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10.29% ) & BB A R 2 513 A #92,200,0008%
B& 5 (BR0.35% ) R B i o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2015, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long positions in Shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity

BR &M 545

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(“Kingdom Investment (BVI)”) (Note 1)

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(IKingdom Investment (BVI)]) (#7t1)

BalEE A

Millionfull International Co., Ltd.
(“Millionfull International”) (Note 2)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd. EnEAEA
(TMillionfull International 1) (#7#2)

Notes:

1. Kingdom Investment (BVI) is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Weiming,

an executive Director and substantial shareholder of the Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Beneficial owner

FTERRNERRXE

BAEMEBRMAM R=B—AF+=A=+—
B BATAL (AATEERBBITHABBRI)
AR TR SRR BB IR IR S R
EDIEI36IHD RANBRAKIAEFENBR
i v S

RGOEFR
Approximately
percentage
Number of of issued
Shares share capital (%)
HERITRAE
RDEE A E D L (%)
290,244,000 46.09
64,800,000 10.29

Wt

(e RAAAIRMTESHRTERREEREEES
Kingdom Investment (BVI) 76.38% ) 1 % °

2. FPTESHESEREERERFE L (BEXE
B R ) 5 Bl A Millionfull International 51.00%
£23.00%K) 2

BALFmEEN R_E—AF+_-_A=+—
B AABUEEEFMAL (ARREEFHRST
BABRRIN g ERARA R RO AR R0
PHEBTAREES LB GRIIE36/KERLAK
ALAZIGRERARRFEN T LM R

N
/ﬁ)% °



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company passed on 15 November 2006, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
grant options to: (i) any Director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the total number of Shares available for issue under options which
may be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 60,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 12 December 2006, the date of
listing of the Shares, unless separate shareholders” approval has been
obtained.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the Scheme
shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the date of grant of option.
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The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (i) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

The Company granted 22,250,000 share options (the “Share
Options”) under the Scheme on 24 August 2015 (the “Date of Grant”)
with details as follows:

EARDHORBEINFERATHESE  (HEH
B R IE B R P B RER AR O KT
B BZBEVARERBD: (WHERERRHLEH
BRERARAOEZXBBIME B RERMT
B FHRHEN S KGR HEE-

KAFIRZE—RFENAZ+IBE ([FEBE])
RIEET 213 H22,250,0000 BE A% 42 ([3Z S B R
) BT

Number of Shares issuable under the options

BRESROTRTROBE
Exercise Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Cancelled
price per Asat  during the  during the  during the  during the Asat  Exercise
Grantees Date of Grant share  1/1/2015 year year year year 31/12/2015  period
R
R® —B-EE
SR —Z-1F +=A
ERA Kiti A 1€ -A-B EFaRH FrTE FARR FrE® =t-8  TEH
HK$
BT
Employees of the Group 24/08/2015 2.0 - 7,250,000 - - - 7,250,000 note 1
in aggregate
rEEES S “E2-RE\AZ+MmA Hiz
Supplier 24/08/2015 2.0 - 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 note 1
R “E2-nfF/\AZ+MWmA i3]
Sales agents 24/08/2015 2.0 - 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 note 1
HERE “E-RENAZTEA it
Business consultants 24/08/2015 2.0 - 4,500,000 - - - 4,500,000 note 1
FBER “E-RENAZTEA Hiz
Total & & 22,250,000 22,250,000
Note 1: Hrati:

Subject to the Scheme, the Share Options granted to the grantees are valid
for a period of four years commencing on the Date of Grant and shall be

exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 30% of the Share Options granted shall be vested and
exercisable at any time after the expiration of six (6) months from the

Date of Grant; and

(if) the remaining Share Options granted shall be vested and exercisable
at any time after the expiration of twenty-four (24) months from the

Date of Grant.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS” INTERESTS IN
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance have been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 19.8% of the Group’s total sales for the Year and
sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
5.0% of the Group's total sales for the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 80.5%
of the Group's total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 28.7% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

During the Year, the Group entered into the following continuing
connected transactions with its connected persons. The transactions
constituted “continuing connected transactions” for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Lease agreements

On 30 December 2011, a lease agreement was entered into by
Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) with Zhejiang Kingdom Creative
Co., Ltd., a company which Mr. Ren Weiming has a controlling equity
interest (“Kingdom Creative”) pursuant to which Zhejiang Jinyuan has
leased a property located at Building 13 to 16, Henggang Xing Heng
Road, Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, from Kingdom
Creative as the Group’s office, for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017 at an annual rental of RMB200,000.
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On 30 January 2014, a lease agreement was entered into by Zhejiang
Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Zhejiang Jinlainuo”) with Kingdom Creative pursuant to
which Zhejiang Jinlainuo has leased a property located at Building
18 to 25, Henggang Xing Heng Road, Haiyan County, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC, from Kingdom Creative for its manufacturing
facilities, for a term of three years from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016 at an annual rental of RMB300,000.

Rental and other terms for these lease arrangements were negotiated
between the parties on arm’s length basis with reference to the
then prevailing market rates. As each of the applicable percentage
ratios for such lease agreements in aggregate are less than 0.1%, the
transactions under these lease agreements are exempted from all
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;
(ii)  either (@) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is

no available comparable terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, there was
no other transaction which needs to be disclosed as a connected
transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE HERSERAQT LHRA
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 1,922,000 7K &) K 4F A 1E 5 32 P B8 B & ££1,922,0004% A%

Shares on the Stock Exchange. The details of the repurchases were 7 BEEIFFIBH R T ¢
disclosed as follows:
Number of Average Total
Shares repurchase consideration
Date of Repurchase repurchased price paid Share cancellation date
B8 @ R 17 efNRE
B A #E FiEEE W IR0 LS A
HK$ HK$
BT B TT
16 Mar 2015 100,000 1.2924 129,240 27 March 2015
—E-RF=At+H —E-RF=A=++H
17 Mar 2015 100,000 1.2914 129,140 27 March 2015
“E-RF=A+tHRH —T-HF=RA=++tH
18 Mar 2015 100,000 1.2890 128,900 27 March 2015
—E-RE=A+NRH —E-hHF=A=++H
19 Mar 2015 100,000 1.3010 130,100 27 March 2015
“E-RF=ZATNAH —T-RF=A=t+tH
20 Mar 2015 100,000 1.2976 129,760 8 April 2015
—E-RF=A-tH —E-RFMANR
23 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3120 196,800 8 April 2015
—E-RF=ZA=+=H —E-hFMmMANE
24 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3072 196,080 8 April 2015
—E-hAF=A=+mMmA —ZET-hFWANA
25 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3492 202,380 8 April 2015
—ZE-A¥=A-+HH —E-RFMANR
26 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3800 207,000 8 April 2015
—E-RFE=AZ=+<H —E-hFMmMANE
27 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3581 203,715 8 April 2015
—E-RF=A=++tH —ZET-hFWANA
30 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3448 201,720 15 April 2015
—E-RF=A=tH “ZE-AFMA+EAHRA
31 Mar 2015 150,000 1.3499 202,485 15 April 2015
—E-RAF=A=+—H “ZE-hFMOA+HA
1 Apr 2015 150,000 1.3395 200,925 15 April 2015
—ZE-hFMA—H —ZE-RFWA+AH
2 Apr 2015 150,000 1.3344 200,160 15 April 2015
—E-hFMACH “ZE-AFMA+EAHRA
8 Apr 2015 72,000 1.4000 100,800 22 April 2015
—F-AFMANE —F-AFMA=-+=H
Total 1,922,000 1.3315 2,559,205
5t
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Save as otherwise disclosed above, the Company or any of its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under Listing Rules throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Ren Weiming (“Mr. Ren”) holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Investment
(BVI) (a controlling shareholder of the Company), in certain private
companies (the “Private Companies”). The Private Companies are
engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing and/or trading
industry (the “Excluded Business”), which are fundamentally different
from the products manufactured by the Group.
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Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006 (the
“Prospectus”), that he will not, and will procure that his associates
will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be
interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the Group's business, those other businesses of the Group as set out
in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or
jurisdiction to which the Group markets or sells its products and/or
in which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned
above from time to time (“Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice
away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company
or organisation who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a
customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.

By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any
direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business and
that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred
to, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.

Presently, Mr. Ren has no plans to inject the aforesaid Excluded
Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment (BVI) and
Mr. Ren an annual confirmation that it’he has fully complied with
its/his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company dated 27 November 2006 during the Year.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers
in the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over longer term.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 48 to 65.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 25 May 2016 to 30 May 2016,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to determine who are entitled to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2016.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
(subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 16 June 2016 to 17 June 2016, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend (subject
to approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting),
unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 June 2016. The proposed
final dividend, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be paid to shareholders on or before
15 July 2016 whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on 17 June 2016.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, the PRC, 18 March 2016
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organisation which is open and
accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The Directors believe
that good corporate governance practices are increasingly important
for maintaining and promoting investor confidence. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Stock Exchange published its Consultation Conclusions on
Risk Management and Internal Control: Review of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“Consultation
Conclusion”) on 19 December 2014, which requires the terms of
reference of the audit committee of an issuer should be amended in
accordance with code provision C.3.3 and an issuer may determine
whether to establish a separate board risk committee taking into
account its own circumstances and resources available. At the
Board meeting of the Company held on 27 November 2015, the
Board approved the amended version of the terms of reference of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) to
include risk management function and responsibility, according to the
Consultation Conclusion. For further details of the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, please refer to the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee published by the Company on 27 November 2015.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviations to code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.3 as disclosed below, the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the Year.
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Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not have any officer with the title of “chief executive officer”.
Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the Company, is
also responsible for overseeing the general operations of the Group.
The Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Company. Given the nature and extent of the
Group's operation and Mr. Ren’s extensive experience in the industry,
the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership,
enabling the Company to operate efficiently.

Code Provision A.4.3

Mr. Lau Ying Kit has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director for nine years in November 2015. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.3 of the Code, if an independent non-executive
director having served the Company for more than nine years, his/
her appointment could be relevant to the determination of an
independent non-executive director’s independence, and his/her
further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. Accordingly, the rotation and re-election
of Mr. Lau shall be approved by shareholders by way of separate
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Lau has extensive experience in the accounting field. His
participations in the Board bring independent judgments on issues
relating to the Group’s accounts, internal controls, nominations of
directors, conflicts of interests and other management matters. The
Board considered the re-election of Mr. Lau as an independent non-
executive Director can safeguard the interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board has received from Mr. Lau a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and noted
that Mr. Lau has not engaged in any executive management of the
Group. Taking into consideration of his independent scope of works
in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Lau to be independent
under the Listing Rules despite the fact that he will be serving the

Company for more than nine years.

Mr. Lau was re-elected as an independent non-executive Director
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 May
2015 pursuant to the requirement of code provision A.4.3 of the
Code. For further details, please refer to the circular and poll results
announcement of the Company dated 15 April 2015 and 18 May
2015, respectively.

Mr. Yang Donghui has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years in November 2015. Pursuant to
code provision A.4.3 of the Code, if an independent non-executive
director having served the Company for more than nine years, his/
her appointment could be relevant to the determination of an
independent non-executive director’s independence, and his/her
further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders. Accordingly, the rotation and re-
election of Mr. Yang shall be approved by shareholders by way of
separate resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Mr. Yang has extensive experience in the textile industry. His
participations in the Board bring independent judgments on issues
relating to the various textile market development, environmental and
resources conservation, internal controls, conflicts of interests and
other management matters. The Board considered the re-election of
Mr. Yang as an independent non-executive Director can safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board has received from Mr. Yang a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and noted
that Mr. Yang has not engaged in any executive management of the
Group. Taking into consideration of his independent scope of works
in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Yang to be independent
under the Listing Rules despite the fact that he has been serving the
Company for more than nine years. Mr. Yang Donghui has informed
the Company that he has elected not to offer himself for re-election
as a Director at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
accordingly will retire as a Director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr. Yang has confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the Board and that there are no matters that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders in relation to his retirement.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors
and devised its own code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in
the Company’s securities on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiries
with all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the provisions of the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this annual
report.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, three of whom are executive
Directors, two of whom are non-executive Directors and three of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The functions
and duties conferred on the Board include: overseeing the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance, promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs,
convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting on the work of
the Board to the shareholders at shareholders” meetings as may be
required by the applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at
shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company’s business plans
and investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and
final accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend
and bonus distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions
and duties as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable
laws. The senior management is delegated with the authority and
responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating ZEFETFHRITERBZHNAARINPBHREER
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall IR » 3 & & Jz 1l 48 2 5] B2 B8 SR B S BUSK o
strategies and policies of the Company.

The composition of the Board and attendance of individual Directors REREFA - ZEFAMKE RERESHFEE
at meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee g ¥FHEEe BERZESRRREEESR
and Nomination Committee during the Year under review, was as  HJIEREAT

follows:
Relevant Meetings Attended/Held
HiE/BITHESE
Remuneration Audit Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
EExg ¥MZEEE BHREEE REHEZES
Directors =
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ren Weiming E#REE
(Chairman of the Board) (EZEELfE) 5/5
Mr. Shen Yueming ILRRRA LA 5/5 11
Mr. Zhang Hongwen R/ EE 5/5 2/2
Non-executive Directors kBTES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BeRLE 5/5
Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing MEBEE 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Yang Donghui BRELE
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (HFWZE2T/E) 5/5 2/2 3/3
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BIRGERE
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BEZEBTE) 5/5 3/3 11
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BREERLE
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (1REZEE1f) 5/5 2/2 3/3 171

The biographical details of the current Board members are set out ZEZERFKENBERFFHNAFREFE24ER
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on F28BR [EENSREEE] —H-KIEEE
pages 24 to 28 of this annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed, &M EEEK B ZHBIET AR (REVH-
there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other 275 - Rizsk b EABE) o

material relationship) between any members of the Board.
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, and the
independent non-executive directors represented over one-third of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors.
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Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and being eligible for re-election. In accordance with
article 87 of the Articles, Mr. Zhang Hongwen, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun
Wilson and Mr. Yang Donghui shall retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Two of the retiring Directors,
Mr. Zhang Hongwen and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Mr. Yang Donghui has elected not to offer
himself for re-election as a Director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 68 to 69 which states the reporting
responsibilities of the Group's auditors.

Annual Report and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.
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Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the
applicable accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
executive officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the Chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations of
the Group. The Board will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company and is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to operate
efficiently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, a non-executive Director, has renewed
his service agreement with the Company for a term of three years,
with the same terms commencing from 1 January 2016. Mr. Tse Mark
Chau Shing has tendered his resignation as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 18 March 2016 with effect from 30 June 2016.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company and is appointed for a
term of three years commencing on 1 January 2013. Mr. Lo Kwong
Shun Wilson and Mr. Lau Ying Kit had renewed with the same terms
for another three years from 1 January 2016. Mr. Yang Donghui has
elected not to offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A new candidate of independent non-executive
director to replace Mr. Yang will be put forward for shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Directors are provided with regular updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates the Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. The
Company has arranged a director’s training during the Year. According
to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors received
the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company on continuous professional
development during the Year:

Name of Directors BEEpns
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ren Weiming EHEREE
Mr. Shen Yueming LR ST
Mr. Zhang Hongwen R/ KL
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BReBREE
Mr. Tse Mark Chau Shing WEB L
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Yang Donghui BRIESE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit £ ES S
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BERERE
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
During the Year, no claim had been made against the Directors and
officers of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy, the company secretary
of the Company during the year under review, attended relevant
professional training for not less than 15 hours.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate. The Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Hongwen, Mr. Yang
Donghui (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lo
Kwong Shun Wilson.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration.
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Two meetings were held during the Year. At the meetings, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policies of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record of each
Director at the said Remuneration Committee meetings held is set out
in the table below:

Name of Directors BEEps

Mr. Zhang Hongwen R/ KA
Mr. Yang Donghui BRESRE
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson ‘EERE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 16
March 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code with effect from 16 March 2012. The primary functions of the
Nomination Committee are to review the Board diversity policy and
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
based on skills, knowledge and experience, to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy. The Nomination Committee comprises
one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo
Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman of the Nomination Committee).

One meeting was held during the Year. At the meeting, the
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the Board diversity policy. The attendance record of
each Director at the said Nomination Committee meetings held is set
out in the table below:

Name of Directors BEEpns

Mr. Shen Yueming TLERBA ST
Mr. Lau Ying Kit S S
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE

The Nomination Committee also determined the policy for the
nomination of Directors and the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select
and recommend candidates for directorship during the Year.
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Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to textile industry experience,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s composition
(including textile industry experience, age, gender and holding of
office in textile association) are as follows:

Textile Industry

Name experience Age
RS MEBITRER Fie
REN Weiming Yes 56
T4 ) 56
SHEN Yueming Yes 54
L B 54
ZHANG Hongwen Yes 49
R X ) 49
NGAN Kam Wai Albert Yes 66
BRE ) 66
TSE Mark Chau Shing No 63
it B s s 63
YANG Donghui Yes 70
1BRE B 70
LAU Ying Kit No 42
Bzt i3 42
LO Kwong Shun Wilson No 42
BERE = 42

The Company’s measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy
are as follows:

1) At least half of the members of the Board should have textile
industry experience.

2) At least one Director should hold office/honorary title in the
textile association in order to ensure the Company to receive
first-hand information about the development and challenges of
the industry.

3)  Gender is not the key consideration. It will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

Service rendered RN RS
Audit Services EZIRE
Tax services % AR

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2015
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors” Report” on pages 68 to 69. Save as disclosed above and in
the section headed “Independent Auditors” Report”, the Company did
not engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and to provide advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for
the corporate governance of the Company performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

J to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

J to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

J to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

J to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and
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J to review the Group’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Yang Donghui and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, of which are
all independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the final results of 2014
and interim results of 2015 with the external auditors and also the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control functions. The attendance
record of each Director at the said Audit Committee meetings held is
set out in the table below:

Name of Directors BEEpnE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit e ES S
Mr. Yang Donghui BREBEE
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE

During the Year, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have
been prepared on a going concern basis, and complies with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Board is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems
on a regular basis so as to ensure that the internal control and risk
management systems in place are adequate.

The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of
internal controls. The Company also has a process for identifying,
evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the achievement
of its operational objective. This process is subject to continuous
improvement and was in place throughout 2015 and up to the
date of this report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to the
individual department, which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance, and is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by
the Board. The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of
the internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure that
they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment.

The Board has conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
during the Year. The assessment was made after discussions with the
management of the Company and a review performed by the Audit
Committee. The Board is of the view that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including
making proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be
called by the Board)

(i)

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including putting
forward proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding
in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM,
the agenda of the EGM including the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted at the EGM,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar.
If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
an EGM within 2 months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder
at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will
not convene an EGM and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the
EGM.
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o If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any
outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the Articles,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.

(i) Procedures for sending enquiries to the board
Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by post
or email to ir@kingdom-china.com for the attention of the
investors relation department of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with
investors and develop greater understanding about the Group for
international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the
Group.

There is no change in the Articles during the Year. An up to date

version of the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on
the Company’s website.
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CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Kingdom Holdings Limited
Level 54 Hopwell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

Fax: +852 3628 2284
Email: ir@kingdom-china.com
DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders’ Rights”.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 2B

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 70 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS” RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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BAEE HPMESHEZEBERRDEERN
EREMNEZE LR AR

=8

BMRE ZEEHT BRI LR BRI
WMEER) EEAQAAMKRMRT S2QFREH
BRARANR-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—HHHKMRR
MZERARHBEZHEFENMGEEERRES R
£ WEERES (RaEf) NEBEREHEE R
o

HE BT
RKEET BB
FBTIR

NS =R
RIEARE2212

—E-RE=A+N\B
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOfERR

Year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=LF—aAF 1+ =H=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-iF —E-mEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR%T R ARBTT
REVENUE WA 5 1,025,403 914,279
Cost of sales $HE AR (761,358) (669,278)
Gross profit EF 264,045 245,001
Other income and gains E s M5 5 12,274 14,309
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R #HAX (38,687) (37,870)
Administrative expenses THEX (55,628) (48,168)
Other expenses H B2 (4,432) (12,931)
Finance costs B 7% B AR 6 (13,236) (10,751)
Share of profits and losses of an JEAG — Bt & 1% )0 ) Kz
associate B8 17 (28) 36
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B4 B 5 7 164,308 149,626
Income tax expense e HAx 10 (43,939) (39,149)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 120,369 110,477
Attributable to: %138 B FE1h
Owners of the parent BRAEERA 120,369 110,477
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BARZERERIZEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EEEREF
OF THE PARENT
Basic AR 12 RMBA R#0.197T RMBAR#0.177T
Diluted B 12 RMBA R¥0.197T RMBA E#0.177T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EfEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=LF—aAF+=H=+—HIFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

F A

RRERMEENRDEE
BEMEM 2K

BEBINRBEOEN Z8

FREHEWREAE

B TR B L
BRFRER A

2015 2014
—E-iF —E-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
120,369 110,477
(285) (1,548)
120,084 108,929
120,084 108,929
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B Ot iR &R

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—E—FHEF —T—F
+=HB=+—H +-—A=+—8©
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR® TR ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB KR E 13 543,976 536,118
Investment property REWME 14 2,080 3,580
Prepaid land lease payments T E TR IR 15 52,065 53,392
Intangible assets BIVEE 76 9,083 9,606
Investment in an associate R—HEBE QMR E 17 - 5,919
Prepayments for equipment RBTAN FRIA 13,194 10,160
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE E 18 5,935 7,596
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 626,333 626,371
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories & 19 340,902 297,104
Trade and notes receivables FEUS & 5 BR 7 M e Uk 22 ik 20 306,821 232,922
Prepayments, deposits and other TARTR - & K H Ath fE UL
receivables B 21 28,226 45,043
Derivative financial instruments MESBTA 23 - 2,244
Pledged deposits EHEAER 24 60,351 69,186
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEED 24 237,214 217,185
Total current assets MBEEEE 973,514 863,684
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and notes payables N E SRR SENFR 25 98,048 151,200
Other payables and accruals HihENFIARTERRE R 26 51,462 57,592
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRBRITEE 27 368,033 230,875
Derivative financial instruments MTAESET A 23 2,258 =
Tax payable FE IR 23,693 24,352
Dividend payable JEAT RS 187 4
Amount due to an associate P& —FEI G & R R R 22 - 100
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 543,681 464,123
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 429,833 399,561
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERARBDAER
LIABILITIES 1,056,166 1,025,932
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the
parent

Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

Ren Weiming
=31

Director

EFE

B O iR &

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

Note
k2
EEABERABARE
ERBEE
RIEFRIE A F 18
FTRIRITIEE 27
BB ERSE
LEFE
e
S RRIHA AEEER
BT A 28
e 30

ey

L
Bl
EN
Rl
2

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E—FHEF —T—F
+=ZA=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
1,056,166 1,025,932
12,188 14,270

- 50,000

12,188 64,270
1,043,978 961,662
6,329 6,345
1,037,649 955,317
1,043,978 961,662

Shen Yueming
gL
Director

BEF

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = KRAR A 7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B REEEER

Year ended 31 December 2015 B Z=LF—aAF 1+ =H=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRFHEA AR
Share
Issued Share Merger Statutory option Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BEf BRE
R&  RBEE  AHRE  iRK i EXRGE  RERA st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 26) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30) (note 29) (note 30)
(fiitas)  (Hiits0)  (Hitso0)  (Witso)  (Hi#29)  (Witso)
At T January 2014 RZZ-m%-A-A 6,345 273,407* 196,816* 79,927* =+ (1,521 335,001* 889,975
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - 110477 110477
Exchange differences on translation of BEBIEBNERZR
foreign operations = = = = = (1,548) = (1,548)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERRAE - - - = = (1548) 110477 108,929
Final 2013 dividend declared BER-Z—=FRERE - - - - - - (37,242) (37,242)
Transfer from retained profits ERERAEH - - - 10,455 - = (10,455) =
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-E-RE+-A=1—H
R-E-n&-f—H 6,345 34074 196,816* 90,3824 - (3,069  397,781% 961,662
Profit for the year FREF - - - = - = 120,369 120,369
Exchange differences on translation of BEBIEHOERZR
foreign operations - - - - - (285) - (285)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZANHLE = = = = = (285) 120,369 120,084
Stock repurchase BERA (16) (2,018) - - - - = (2,034)
Final 2014 dividend declared BEER-Z-MERERE - - - - - - (37,370) (37,370)
Equity-settled share option arrangements B & S RRER - - - - 1,636 - = 1,636
Transfer from retained profits ERERERT - - - 16,370 - - (16,370) -
At31 December 2015 RZE-R%+-A=+-H 6,329 271,389* 196,816* 106,752* 1,636* (3,354)* 464,410% 1,043,978
S These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBREES O B E & & O
RMB1,037,649,000 (2014: RMB955,317,000) in the consolidated AR #1,037,649,0005T (= F—F : ARKE
statement of financial position. 955,317,0007T) °
K%k

o Retained profits have been adjusted for the proposed final 2074
dividend in accordance with the current year’s presentation, which is

described in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EOHBEERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—F—hF+=—HA=+—HIFEF

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Share of profits and losses of an associate

Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative
instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges

Equity-settled share option expense

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Amortisation of an intangible assets

Provision/(reversal) for impairment of inventories

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment/(reversal) of provision for
impairment of trade receivables

Finance costs

Bank interest income

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and notes receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Decrease in derivative financial instruments

(Decrease)/increase in trade and
notes payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and
accruals

(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to an
associate

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

REZHNRENE
B T A A

SN ¢

FE {5 — PRI & 2 Al Al M e 18

TETAM AR EBERSRES
(1%21)
—TEEREHRNRS

M s i B R IR R S

e

£ 30 AH & B FRIR 5

BB EH

FERERE (EE)

HEME  BFE M&HEHER
&1

FEUE BRI EERE,
(#E[E)
BT R

RITHE WA

FEIEM
FEU B 2 R0 N R W R AR AN
BN e R H bR IR
B (3B n)
EER TR PAFFIA
b ARE SRR ET /N
TESMIARD
ENEZEIRENER
CRA) /18
H At A SR R TR R B A
(R /18
JE 5 — R Bt & 2 RIRIA
(R /18

RERPELNTRS

B UFIE
B SR

RERHELNREREFH

2015 2014
—E-aF —ZT—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREF T
164,308 149,626
28 (36)
2,258 (2,244)
1,636 =
60,774 57,003
1,327 1,327
606 606
2,366 (1,332)
771 941
1,129 (229)
13,236 10,751
(2,912) (946)
245,527 215,467
(46,164) (31,428)
(75,028) (69,940)
16,817 (11,192)
39,435 30,823
(18,840) (39,435)
2,244 7,819
(53,152) 35,298
(6,130) 20,190
(100) 100
104,609 157,702
2,912 946
(45,019) (35,003)
62,502 123,645
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EOHBEERER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=LF—aAF 1+ =H=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Prepayments for equipment

Disposal of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Share repurchase

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans
Proceeds from pledged deposits
New pledged deposits

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position

2015 Annual Report —ZE — A F &3

REFHNRERE

BEVE BEMRBHRENUL

BREE
R TEA R

HE — B E AR

HEWE BERRBEBAE

b/

REEHMANRCREFH

BMETHNREARE

B ER
FERITER
BEBITER

BEERBEFR A
FiE B BT

ENHE
ERE

BMETHELE (AWM

RemERH

RERRESEYEMFEE

78 £H

1=F 3K

B

FNREMRSFEY

ERRBY e

HER

FERRERFASEEY

RERREESEVERIN

RE MIRITHERR
BN RATIHER & K

RaEEY

2015 2014
—2-1% —F-nmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
(57,563) (99,692)
(13,194) (10,160)
5,891 -
1,507 5,060
(63,359) (104,792)
(2,034) -
510,710 293,856
(423,552) (251,529)
29,751 37,802
41,511) (29,751)
(15,006) (14,794)
(37,187) (37,405)
21,171 (1,821)
20,314 17,032
217,185 201,698
(285) (1,545)
237,214 217,185
237,214 217,185
237,214 217,185




Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarns.

The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands; and the principal place of business is located
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong

1.

Kong.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

DNAEH

Overseas Kingdom Limited

Overseas Kingdom Limited

Kingdom Group Holdings Limited
(“Hong Kong Kingdom”)

EEEERERAR
(IBEeEl)

Asia Harvest Enterprises Limited

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

SRR AR A

British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
26 July 2006

RERAES
“EERFLACTRA

Hong Kong, China
10 September 2004
HEEE
—ZEMFEAATH

Hong Kong, China
10 November 2005
FEEE
“FE¥AFT—A+AH

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
ERTEER
HE/ ERRE

HK$0.01/HK$500

0.0137T,/50075 7T

HK$1,250,000

1,250,000/ 7T

HK$1/HK$10,000

17878,/10,000/8 7T

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

RAREEEFR

SEERERATN=FEAF LA
AERSRBEMR L AEREBRAT -
ARABRBR-BBAF+=A+-BES
BHARSHERAR (TBRH]) L

AEBEBRELEERHEETMY -

ANA B HY 5 % B R B sk A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands : £+ Z
EEMB RGN ER 2R/ AERI83HKA M
FL54HE o

EREHMEATNER
ARFRMBRBFBEAT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company  Principal activities

ARREEREA DL TEER
Direct Indirect
B i
100% - Investment holding
100% - REER
- 100%  Investment holding and

trading
- 100% HEERRES

- 100%  Trading

= 100% E5

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ERERE Q7
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S ARk B

As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+_-H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Name of company

DREH

Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.

IS TEMERAR

Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.

IHETDMERAR

Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.

IHRBEMARAR

Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd.

I ETMARAR

Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd.

MTERAGEBERAA

Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd.

RETHTMAR A

2015 Annual Report —ZE — A F &3

Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/
of incorporation/ registered

establishment share capital

BRAZER

HEMBL/ BB R A HE/ SRR
PRC US$43,820,000
18 March 2003

i 43,820,000 7T
—“ZZ=F#=A+N\H

PRC US$18,500,000
17 October 2003

i 18,500,000 7T
—TE=Ft+A+tH

PRC US$10,000,000
26 October 2006

H 10,000,000 75
“EERFTAZFH

PRC RMB100,000,000
28 May 2012

HE AE 100,000,000
—T——F#HA-1+N\H

PRC RMB10,000,000
28 February 2012

HE AE#10,000,0007T
—T——#-fA-+N\H

PRC RMB30,000,000
23 May 2007

HE AE#30,000,00075

—EEHFRAZtZ=H

AEAIREEER @

H B2 AN ER
ARFMBRATFEDT : ()

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AAFELERBAL
Direct Indirect
=8: 3 GE:
- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

= 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

SERBETMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EEREETMY

Manufacture and sale of

linen yarns

HERBETMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

HERBESMY

Manufacture and sale of
linen fibre

HERBES M

Processing of agriculture
products
RERMT
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 S A B

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Name of company

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital

AEAIREEER @

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

H B2 AN ER
ARFMBRATFEDT : ()

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

ERTEER

DREH SR R BHER B HE/ERRE

Kingdom Europe S.R.L. Italy EUR502,646
7 September 2007

Kingdom Europe S.R.L. BAR 50264688 7
“ZZHENALA

Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC Ethiopia US$200,000
16 July 2014

Kingdom (Fthiopia) Linen PLC YREMLL T 200,000 7T
ZZ-MELATRA

Haiyan Jinda Flax Fiber Co., Ltd. PRC RMB64,000,000
15 December 2015

Haiyan Jinda Flax Fiber Co., Ltd. H AK%64,000,0007T
“T-AFt-A+hA

BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (RMB’000), except when otherwise
indicated.

AAFEGERZE DT TEEK
Direct Indirect
E# GE:
- 100%  Trading
= 100% E5
= 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
= 100%  HEREEDMY
- 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
= 100% EEREEDMY
RBLEAE

AHBHRRVIRRER G ENZTE SR
fior) KRR B REEL) (BEME (B
BEEHREER)  (BEEEER) k2
B)REE (REED) MR BERERE R
TEERTARAAREEFEN KUK
BRIVBIBELKAERR -FRIFEREFR
B BRIAMBREAAREZS] MAAAE
BECOBRAAZSZEOIN TR (ARE
FT) e

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ERERE Q7
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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MBLEE @)
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ZHERNE AAKEEEHTEEES
EHIEXBREER -HEBAREEEERD
BE) (WEREZHE)ZERR P AR



2.1

2.2

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

(@ Amendments to IAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee
service, for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If
the amount of the contributions is independent of the
number of years of service, an entity is permitted to
recognise such contributions as a reduction of service
cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not have defined benefit plans.

2.1

2.2

B 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+-H=+—H

MBELEE @

ESOLEE )

A AREE K EL B R B EHIRE  BlgR
IFEROZNBARMEE (BiEEE) KA
& ~ (i) {A] FE 422 i) 1 4 25 9 BR T8 <2 B8 R (i)
PR N BRI R E 258 LIERG)FT
WRBHAEBE  (VEARBEREHN AR
BE K (i) B 2= P E 1 A Ut E £ 0 A RS
o BEREMEEREAERNAEERE
DR BN SEE EE HERBEESR
BENMETNEREESEH D EEBEEN
RBEF (WER) °

BEERKRENES

AEE D RUAFENMBHRRERFA T

RRIERTEH

(BR8] F195 AERBMGE:
HERT A EEHER
(EIBR B B3R 25 22 Al
FRENE-FE—FTFD
—E——FHH

(BB 8] T 3R 25 22 Al )
FEHE-F——F

ECE——FHE

BREFTANEEREEmALT

(BB g5 ER) F1958 N ERTRNE
ARMEBHE =77 RRERAGEIE
HE R - R FER] AL EE B R
BFEREBN KO EETRE - §40
REFEVET A LAENREH
X o fidi % R BR R AR B RE - A
B R IR A RA AR 75 &9 BA T A
B B8 SR RE TR A IR A B AN HIORL » R 0
AR B & E RN E MR FE
RIAHASETETE-

—
1%
=
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S ARk B

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZFE—AF+=-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in December 2013 sets out amendments to a
number of IFRSs. Details of the amendments that are
effective for the current year are as follows:

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria in
IFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether
the segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets to
total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating
decision maker. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
or amortisation of revalued items of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group does not apply the revaluation model
for the measurement of these assets.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements.
In addition, an entity that uses a management
entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred
for management services. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not receive any management services from other
entities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
issued in December 2013 sets out amendments to a
number of IFRSs. Details of the amendments that are
effective for the current year are as follows:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of IFRS 3 and the scope exception applies
only to the accounting in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is
applied prospectively. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form any joint
arrangement during the year.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but
also to other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9
or IAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual
period in which IFRS 13 was initially applied. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as
the Group does not apply the portfolio exception
in [FRS 13.

IAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that IFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in
IAS 40 which differentiates between investment
property and owner-occupied property, is used to
determine if the transaction is a purchase of an
asset or a business combination. The amendment
is applied prospectively for acquisitions of
investment properties. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as there is no acquisition of
investment properties during the year and so this
amendment is not applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange relating
to the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
during the current financial year. The main impact to the
financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the financial statements.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14
IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 7

2016

2018

Financial Instruments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’

Amendments to a number of
IFRSs’

Leases*

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses®

Disclosure Initiative®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

’ Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

2019

2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

g No mandatory effective date determined but available for

adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
is included as part of the Group's investments in associates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group’s investment property is accounted for using
the cost model. The initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of land and buildings that are leased out are
accounted for using the same measurement and depreciation
methods as those of plant and buildings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The useful life of the intangible asset of
the Group is 20 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

2015 Annual Report —Z— A F &3

24 FEEHHERHBE @

BIEE
BEEBENELEEVIRERRIEKAG
E-BEBEEMNEAFHTGHABRIE
R - FHABRMER EEREENRAFERLE
FHANEE YR ETRBETNEREERR
EREITREN G - FERFEHA R E
FEEMEHFRREETAZE PRSI
FE/BRBRT X - AEBEFEENT]
ERAFHEIR205F -

HF 3% B AR
FIAMERA AR EER ARG R AR -

MEMERBBMELNRAXASETIIIE
MATNEMEWVEELEERIE - NEE A BN 7T
PREZ IR B B AEE Ak i & g Rl
ERAIT  ARBERTKL AR EE
WRESMERR L EZREE R REERR
7% 2N fe] EE A AR A5  SERRZ IR B VAT B
RENEBARNAI ST EERIGBESD
PImRX  THANFEENEMMEM
EELERXH-

TR B A AR AR AR ER BRI
VTAERZEEBERNBRFS (BREK
ABELEERMES THEEAZLF)R
HgH o



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments and
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentive
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presents as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans or
administrative expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

24

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

FESHTHEHME @

THMEERE
AEERBERESHRTEEEATELR
Br-EoREEX—HeREEDRE.
B BENIRERRELN —HEXZ BN
HZHETREENZASREENMGEARR
RenBELATE MBRTERR S
it RIEERE - REFRAIABE—RE
AR —AEHAELEREVBERE F
ERASFRIBENSIBIEROPTR - KER]
RS AE S B IS EA KA R BURR
RMERTARKBR SR E L E — @R 5T E/R
L L AR B HE R AR BR B B0 R B SRR S AR
AR E B o

HESHX AR S BEE

IRB AT IR EREEM = AR H
BERAEENAERENEANSREEN
EHFEENTEANEREERLGFE
BE - HARBERR - HEBTENERE
ERERENTBRIRHR AN mEANE
B esER-EERUEERREENE
BEES GraHEHRIE - R B\ T (HRE B
EEREHERANFERERANEETRRE
KRB A BT -

EREBRREBRESRIREENRES
BLEFRERE (TEERELMNRRE
&8 REME ZFNERTE - hahRRK
RenBRERSREERABRFE (F
R HERS T ENERAN R ) 3 -

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZERERE Q7

i



98

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank
loans, trade and notes payables, an amount due to an associate,
other payables and a dividend payable.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as
follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

24 FESHBEME @

ot N=Ki ¢ ¥
BB 2
StRMBEREFENT:

MatERR SHERTEERERERAERA
FRIRBIHERAE  ERITRNPETE
2 QIR ARTIBR - B4R L RER B E RINME
RERMERETEHER  NESRERA
e

BERANGEDEREMNKRETERE
B MEBRERNEER o8B
o BERA R EHI AR SRR -

RIEBATHMEE
EERA ENE RS HBUERE W -
TR B EA AR LR

HIRE LB E BB R —REAAEKE ST
R BRI HRBRENGRFTIELE
RIER] R RIMTHERT T8 B L FERIR
BELERMBERE AEKASENE
BMNIEERER -

HisemT A
EEBRITARBIHMITHORE RS HE
RNBFEEEEMAFEREREE &
BEEEEMRRABREETOBERT &/
EERSRAGISHIYHE MFEIA
BIFEARILR ©

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ERERE Q7

oL



100

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEME @

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial tree model, further details of which are
given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Pension scheme

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
There are no provisions under the Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior
years, final dividends proposed by the directors were classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Following the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at fair
value (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements arising from the judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, made by management in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

(@)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2015 was RMB5,935,000 (2014:
RMB7,596,000). Further details are contained in note 18
to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

()

Write-down of inventories

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The Group writes down
its inventories based on estimates of the realisable
value with reference to the age and conditions of the
inventories, together with the economic circumstances
on the marketability of such inventories. Inventories will
be reviewed annually for write-down, if appropriate.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2015 was RMB340,902,000 (2014: RMB297,104,000).
Further details are contained in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of trade and notes receivables

Impairment of trade and notes receivables is made
based on assessment of the recoverability of trade
and notes receivables. The identification of bad and
doubtful receivables requires management judgement
and estimates. Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the
debts. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, the differences will
impact the carrying value of the receivables and related
asset impairment charge or write-back in the period
in which the estimate has been changed. The carrying
amount of trade and notes receivables at 31 December
2015 was RMB306,821,000 (2014: RMB232,922,000).
Further details are contained in note 20 to the financial
statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives or management will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December
2015 was RMB543,976,000 (2014: RMB536,118,000).
Further details are contained in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that is primarily the manufacture and
sale of linen yarns. Management reviews the consolidated
results when making decisions about allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no
segment analysis is presented.

Geographical information

(@  Revenue from external customers
An analysis of the Group’s geographical information on
revenue attributed to the regions on the basis of customer
location for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
in the following table:

Mainland China el N
European Union (Fg]
Non-European Union JEEN B [
Total 1R

(b)  Non-current assets
Since the principal non-current assets, other than
deferred tax assets, employed by the Group are located
in Mainland China, no geographical information for non-
current assets is presented.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group’s
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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Revenue from
external customers

REMBELFBA
2015 2014
—E—-0fF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

358,930 330,403
258,824 251,538
407,649 332,338
1,025,403 914,279
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue represents the sales value of linen yarns, net of sales
tax and deduction of any sales discounts and returns.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA Hf s REEs T

2015 2014
—B-AHF —T-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREF T
Revenue ON
Sale of linen yarns SHE TR fif &) 1,025,403 914,279
Other income H Wz
Bank interest income RITH EHA 2,912 946
Government grants B 488 B 6,695 10,211
Foreign exchange gains, net SME 1S 2% FR 2,270 -
Others HAf 397 908
12,274 12,065
Gains Ba
Fair value gains on derivative instruments ~ $TA T EM QA EES=
— transactions not qualifying as hedges —TEEREEHNRZS - 2,244
12,274 14,309
FINANCE COSTS 6. HBHEA
2015 2014
—E-5F —ZE-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARBT T
Interest on bank loans IRITEREFE 15,006 14,794
Less: interest capitalised L B AREFR (1,770) (4,043)
13,236 10,751
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
Amortisation of an intangible asset
Research and development (“R&D”)
expenses
Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:
Land and buildings
Auditors” remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration):

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension scheme contributions
Equity-settled share option expense

Foreign exchange differences, net
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Fire accident losses, net
Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value/(reversal of
the write-down of inventories)
Impairment of trade receivables/
(Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables)
Finance costs
Bank interest income

Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

7. BRBAIEF
AEEBRTARFNAR, (GTA) TS

HEBEH:
2015 2014
—E-ffF —T 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETIT
HEFERA 761,358 669,278
e 60,774 57,003
I 4 T & TR IR 1,327 1,327
B EE#E 606 606
HEEFAE ([FHE]FALX

5,889 5,427

KEREE T RERERIE:

TH RETF 1,925 1,463
1% B RN BN 1,800 1,750
EERARAX

(BREEK

E=TBABFHH)

TE #He kHMEF 154,280 133,140

RIREET B R 8,575 7,354

DiEmEEERER 1,636 -

164,491 140,494
SNE ZEFHFER (2,270) 10,055
PTETENAREBEERE(B8%)

—PNEEBEREEHHNRS 2,258 (2,244)
HEME BELKREEEEE

(5= 771 941
NSHB K F R - 399
MRTFEZA 2R FE

(L7 EMOR)

2,366 (1,332)
FEUE B ERFURE,

(B RN E SERFOREEE)

1,129 (229)
BF 75 P AR 13,236 10,751
HRITHEHA (2,912) (946)
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S 8.
REMUNERATION
Directors’” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees we

HAb B :
e R REMA S
R R B

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

(@  Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Mr. Yang Donghui CEN:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit I EES e
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2014: Nil).

114
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EERBETHRAEHM

FA-RIEETHRA BB CQREHD E
383(1)(@)* (b) () RMEAR (AR (HEE
EFZER) RO FBEENES RS
FTRRABEHBT :

2015 2014
—E-FHF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
502 499

3,100 3,100

105 108

3,707 3,707

(@ BIUFRTEF
FARRBILIFATES BT

T :
2015 2014

—E-EHF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®EFT T ARBTIT

96 96

115 115

97 96

308 307

FRYEEMNBIIFRTESTOE M
Me(—F—mFE: &) -



8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)  Executive directors, and non-executive directors and

chief executive

2015

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming*
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Non-executive directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark

—E—h%E

WITES

(58P
8 b
REXEAE

FRHTES
BEEkE
AEBEE

Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

8. EERBSITHAEHFMw

b)) BTEF FRTESEERTH
ANE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e
BER Efke
re EMFI= FHEIftRR g0 Pk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR¥ETxn
- 1,500 35 1,535
- 850 35 885
- 750 35 785
- 3,100 105 3,205
97 - - 97
97 - - 97
194 - - 194
194 3,100 105 3,399

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = KRAR A 7

115



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, and non-executive directors and

chief executive (continued)

2014

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming*
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Non-executive directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark

WITES
(58P
8 b
REX KL

8. EERRSIT

BABFHMH m

FHTES
BEEkE
AEBEE

Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as an executive director of the

Company, is also the chief executive officer of the Company.
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b) HITESF FATESAZSTH
ANEB (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
e
R & BRRe
e B = SR EA ek
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTIT ARETT ARETT ARETR
- 1,500 36 1,536
- 850 36 886
- 750 36 786
- 3,100 108 3,208
96 - - 96
96 - - 96
192 - - 192
192 3,100 108 3,400

B RBAER AR ITEFREHP L TR
EAR R AT AR,
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2014: three) directors including the chief executive, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2014: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIH K

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

e R REDNGE

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

LEEEHMES

FRN LEERTMEERE=2 (=%
—HE =ZR)EF ETPEBERSTERA
8 HHMFEEHN EXMES - FAR /T
MG (ZF—MF: WA )RR AEEH&K
BITBABNREHMESNFMFEN
T

2015 2014
—E-FHF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
1,479 1,416

49 49

1,528 1,465

FIMERATHENFEZRIFRSITRA
BH&=HMES ABMT

Number of employees

EEBAH
2015 2014
—Z2-1% —TnmF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T £ 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,00078 7T 1 1
2 2

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no directors and
chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-chief
executive, highest paid employees waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration (2014: None). None of the directors and
chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-chief
executive, highest paid employees received any payment from
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2014: None).

RBE_FT-—AF+_A=T—HLFE"
BEEENESTHRABREAFEERIFE
RETHRABNZSEHMESNEXRER
ZEAFMH (ZF—NF &) -HEEFRK
RRITBRABSEAES RIFRRITHA
B R = #r B (E B AR 5 B U ER (AT SRR A
REIEMAREB RN INARE B E R
B iERRBHE (S —HEF &) -

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ERERE Q7
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Major components of the Group’s income tax expense for the

year are as follows:

Current — Mainland China
— Charge for the year
— Overprovision in respect of prior years
Current — Hong Kong
— Charge for the year
Current — Italy
— Charge for the year
Deferred (note 18)

Total tax charge for the year

10. FR8HiAxX

AEERFANMERAXEZRBNT:

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
BIVHA — A B9 K i
—FAZH 43,272 31,384
—BAEFERERE (535) (122)
BVHA — &5
—FRZ N 1,604 1,323
BIHR — &= K Fl
—FRZH 19 1,080
B (H17E18) (421) 5,484
FRRIAL H B 43,939 39,149

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

The provision for Mainland China income tax is based
on the respective corporate income tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(the” PRC").

During the Fifth Session of the Tenth National People’s
Congress, which was concluded on 16 March 2007, the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “Corporate Income
Tax Law”) was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008. According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the applicable tax rates of the Group’s subsidiaries
in Mainland China are unified at 25% with effect from
1 January 2008 except for Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd.
(“Zhaosu Jindi”) and Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd.
(“Zhejiang Jinlainuo”), two indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group. Zhaosu Jindi is engaged in
the preliminary processing of agriculture products and is
exempted from PRC income tax. Also, Zhejiang Jinlainuo
obtains the High-new Technology Certificate for years
from 2014 to 2016 with a tax rate of 15%.
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(i) REFRSHESE;REBREZESHRIIR
B AKBHARMASESHR
BRLZESEH -

(i) FPEREMERBGHERELNHE
RENMBARMER RTPEAR
HAE ([FE ) BREMBHARAFE
HRAMEENSEEMSHREMMEL -

FTEZEARRZRREEALNSE
ER-_BEHF=ATBAER B
FEBT (PEGEMGEE) ([1
EMBHE]) YR _TZENF— A
—BAER-BECEMSHERE

ZEENF-—A—BR AEEHF
B KPEM B AR R EARE ST — A
25% WASEMNREEEZEEENB
NEBEFRSHEMAER AR ([BiFd
#]) RANT S HHEEHEFRAR ([
TaHE B -Birs it s E2E
MBI T¥7 B3 e 8 R BEAT
BR-MISHARRESR T —Y
FE-T—AFZEFEN S
BB HERI5% o



10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. Fr8

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate (iii)
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group (iv)
is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 31.4%, which

comprises Italy Corporate Income Tax at 27.5% and Italy

Regional Income Tax at 3.9%.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

BB )
EENEHIRERNRBTBELEMN T
JE SR F i DA 16.5% 5 R 5T R B o

RIBEBAFRA SRR REEAR
31.4% R BN EH - B B
27 5% R BN B AN RAER
K 323.9% R 5 BB AN MR P 1T
R o

BARBRENBRBMENREE
SRR HYATE B R AT HE AR BR B AT
MBI BIRERR R E

RORE IR B SZ RO T BR LD TS -
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—OE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Profit before tax BR 2 Al 7 164,308 149,626
Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25% &3 B #925%%1 5T E 8T 18 41,077 37,407
Effect of different tax rates MEEZEZE (5,645) (4,792)
Overprovision in respect of prior BT FE RS

years (535) (122)
Share of profit of an associate JEAE — 1 Bt & X B0 7 7 9)
Income not subject to tax N R A U & (1,734) (130)
Tax losses not recognised RNUERH TR IAE 18 1,384 -
Expenses not deductible for tax AN AT IR 7 S 3,464 1,084
Tax credit arising from additional — ] R B B B 1 B AA B B 2 A ET

deduction of R&D expenditures of ~ FIBREALMFIEK B

a PRC subsidiary (607) (426)
Deferred tax liability EMREANBECHERE

on withholding tax 6,528 6,137
Total charge for the year FRY AR 43,939 39,149

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ERERE Q7
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

Proposed final — HK8.0 cents
(2014: HK7.5 cents) per ordinary share

At a meeting of the board of directors held on 18 March
2016, the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per
ordinary share totalling approximately RMB42,204,000 was
recommended for the year ended 31 December 2015, which
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
630,195,000 (2014: 631,600,000) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the rights issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
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11.

12.

R AHIR S — I E RS0
—E—F:7.5581l)

% E
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
42,204 37,370
42,204 37,370

[
U

—~EFEZA+NBETNESESSE
CBEORFRBBE_T-—AFT+ A
+—HIEFERBREZR L BES.0HE
A AR 42,204,0007T 0 BEARA
AR RN EERRAF RS EH A& FA{E

E Nl %

Zl

i}

\;
/!

BRAREERESRKAEARGER
EXRBERER

BREARBFTIIBESG QR L@ ERS
BEABRMGFERNSZHNREFRNE BT ER
hn4E F 15 #630,195,0000% ( = — PO £ :
631,600,0008% ) 51 & + I B 1E H 78 & LA I
F ST R AR

BREERNRES AR T BRERTE
ARMEFRENE -t HERERMNERK
IEFHBTENDETERRHE (HE5t
HEREAABMAEAERR)  KRERR
EREEEC L ARG SEITER AR
TRRREERTHTBINEFSH-



12. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

Notes to Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2015 K= %

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders i {¢§+§%%$&§E%Ef'JW
of the parent used in the basic and RAEBRESEFTAA

diluted earnings per share calculations &4 5 A
Shares ;&
Weighted average number of ordinary REFESREREZNL

FADETEBBINETFHH

shares in issue during the year used in the
basic earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average BEE—LTRRMNETHE:
number of ordinary shares:
Share options A s

& Because the diluted earnings per share amount is increased &

when taking share options into account, the share options had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the
year and were ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share amounts are
based on the profit for the year of RMB120,369,000 and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 630,195,000 in
issue during the year.

B 5 S A B

—AFft=—H=1+—H

BRI EREZFEAERGER
EXREERFN w

BREARESRFOFTESRLT

2015 2014
—B-EHF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBEF T
120,369 110,477
Number of shares
BHEEE
2015 2014
—EB-1F —E-mEF
000 ‘000
T T
630,195 631,600
7,952 -
638,147* 631,600
BRET R IEREIF & 1Z IR &R T

HIE(RE - B R IBES F A IREAR B FIA
BEREEZE MR EGREBEETF
1 B HEBR B AR 1 - U - 5 R 158 4 Fl
20887 10 FEF i FIA B #5120,369,000
T R F R E BT RN E T
630,195,0000:1 2 -

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = KRAR A 7
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014 and i S f:3

at 1 January 2015: TZAZT-HER
—F-Rf-A-H:

Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
Net carrying amount REFE

At 1 January 2015, net of R-ZE-RF—f—AR:
accumulated depreciation i 25T E
Additions AE

Transfer from investment property ~ BHABRENZF
Transfer to investment property BAREM%

Depreciation provided ERFTERE
during the year
Transfers B
Disposals &
Exchange realignment E
At31 December 2015, net of RZZF-1%
accumulated depreciation +ZA=t-A"
B EGHE
At31 December 2015: RZZ-LfF
+-A=t-H:
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
Net carrying amount BHFE

122 2015 Annual Report — % — T & &£ 4

13. ME -BERRE
—2-H%+=-A=+-AH

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction

buildings Machinery ~ equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BER RENE

BEY BE  HAZRE RE %% EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR%®Tr ARETR AR%TR AR%®Tn AR¥ETR
266,121 553,271 49,150 9,681 11,664 42,199 932,086
(66,791) (297,421) (19,121) (6,141) (6,494) - (395,968)
199,330 255,850 30,029 3,540 5,170 42,199 536,118
199,330 255,850 30,029 3,540 5170 42,199 536,118
7,496 6,343 4,354 458 2,203 48,556 69,410
3,580 - - - - - 3,580
(2,250) - - - - - 2,250)
(15,742) (37,152) (4,609) (1,091) (2,010) - (60,604)
8,240 34,631 4,996 - - (47,867) -
- (2,076) (78) (124) - - (2,278)
200,654 257,59 34,692 2,783 5,363 42,888 543,976
281,947 590,767 57,722 9,897 13,866 42,888 997,087
®12039  (333,171) (23,030) (7,114) (8,503) - 453,111)
200,654 257,596 34,692 2,783 5,363 42,888 543,976
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. V¥ BERRE@®
31 December 2014 —E-NFE+ZA=+—8
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BEM BE  HAERE "E E3 ERIRE @z

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR  ARETT AR%TR ARETT ARETR ARETZ ARETR

At 1 January 2014: RZZ-MmE-A—-A:
Cost B 173,298 441,475 27,888 8,653 11,577 137,079 800,170
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (59,799) (261,070) (14,391) (5,398) (4,421) = (345,079)
Net carrying amount BHFE 113,499 180,405 13,497 3,455 7,156 137,079 455,001
At 1 January 2014, net of W_ZE-mE-A—-H:
accumulated depreciation Nk 25T E 113,499 180,405 13,497 3,455 7,156 137,079 455,091
Additions RE 8,280 3,654 6,253 1,157 90 124,426 143,860
Depreciation provided ERRERE
during the year (10,564) (38,350) (4,800) (1,039) (2,076) - (56,829)
Transfers L 93,320 110,897 15,089 = = (219,306) -
Disposals e (5,205) (756) 7) (33) = = (6,001)
Exchange realignment B S - - 03) 5 - - @)
At31 December 2014, net of R_E-NE
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+-H"
N 25T E 199,330 255,850 30,029 3,540 5,170 42,199 536,118
At 31 December 2014: RZZ-ME
+=A=+-H:
Cost e 266,121 553,271 49,150 9,681 11,664 42,199 932,086
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (66,791) (297,421) (19,121) (6,141) (6,494) - (395,968)
Net carrying amount EEE 199,330 255,850 30,029 3,540 5170 42,199 536,118
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s property, plant and Wt 27V E R T —RAFE+ A
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately E+-—B AEEREFEEHOAREK
RMB70,282,000 (2014: RMB107,437,000) were pledged to 70,282,000 (ZE—MF : AR¥
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 27(i). 107,437,0007C) M2 B E MREE TE

o ERARBERBITERNER-
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

R—A—BORETER
ENNBREVE BELERE

Carrying amount at 1 January
Reclassification to property,

plant and equipment
Reclassification from property, BYE WERREBEHHER
plant and equipment

Depreciation provided during the year

FRTERE
RTZA=1T—HBNRETHE

Carrying amount at 31 December

14. REWE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
3,580 3,754
(3,580) =
2,250 =
(170) (174)
2,080 3,580

The Group’s investment property is a commercial property
in Shanghai, the PRC. The directors of the Company have
determined that the investment property consist of one class
of asset, i.e., commercial, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of the property. The Group’s investment property
was revalued on 31 December 2015 based on valuations
performed by Haiyan Zhonglian Asset Assessment Limited
Corporation, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
RMB6,599,600. Each year, the Group’s property manager and
the chief financial officer decide, after approval from the audit
committee, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group's investment property.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment property is leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

In 2015, the Group transferred an investment property to
property, plant and equipment for the Group’s own use, and
also transferred another commercial property to investment
property for lease.
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REBAOREWETIM AP E LFHERA
ME-ARBESRBEREYENEE 5
MRER BEREYER —HEEEMAR
BB ER R E—RE+ A =+—
H ASEREBYEXSERGEME
B EETHERARAMETHNHET
B BARBENRENEENHESARE
6,599,6007T ° T F » ANE B MY FELIE R I
BBEERSEZZESMNILEER EBEW
ZE—BINEGEMEZEHAEBHREY
EEITINEEE - BUBIZEBIEM IS M
BE - BUMRELEFTEEKE-AEH
RELIE R ISRERP AR 2 FHBEE
HETHER 2 RAEMBREERSR R
BERETSEMANTR -

REMEREEHERETE=7 HE—
FEIFNE G MR FE31 @Bt

R-T—h%F AEES - BREVEER
EWE BEAREBEHRER RBKE A
ERANFEREREYERHEE-
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. REVEm
Fair value hierarchy RABEERES
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRETAEEREMENAALBEFES
hierarchy of the Group’s investment property: eSS

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2015 using
RAUTEER=Z-EFE+=-A=+—H

BTHAREETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERBWSE EBEATEE EXTUHE

H#EE BWAE BAE
(%—F&) (£5=8) (%=F) N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR

Recurring fair value measurement for: & E AR EEE -
Commercial property ElikJES - - 6,600 6,600

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 using
HKANTEERZ=ZZ—NF+=-A=+—H

EITHARBERNE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REETS EAAUBER EATAIHE

H$RE AR BWAE
(£5—E) (F=E) (=) st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREBTE

Recurring fair value measurement for: & F R A BETE:

Commercial property [Eligk/ES = - 4,034 4,034
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA AABENEEE EMEF_ECZH
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BEEk TEEAF—ElaE=_EE
into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil). ZE—OFE) o
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As at 31 December 2015 R-ZFE—AF+=-HA=+—H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment property:

Valuation techniques

Significant unobservable inputs

14. BEYE w

NREESEHREE @m
T AEEEGEMANGEREZREE
B ABEREE:

Range or weighted average

fHERE BEAFUBERAE EERMEFIIH
2015 2014
—2-IF —F-mF
Commercial property  Discounted cash flow Estimated rental value RMB235 RMB171
method (per sq. m. and per month)
[0k ZES REeREWRIA HEtHEEE ARW235T ARK1717T
(BT HKRESEA)
Rent growth (p.a.) 3% 6%
HEER (8F) 3% 6%
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REAZEEX i3 i
Discount rate 5.5% 5.75%
PR 5.5% 5.75%

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs
from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.
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RN EEEERNNEREE (B
REEBEBEICOREE)NRZETMHE %
ﬁ/ﬁ/ﬁ&ﬁ%@%ﬁé SR —ERRSMEMTE
B e MIZMTEMT R RERAREARSRE
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15.

Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of
the investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in
the long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair
value of the investment property. Generally, a change in the
assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied
by a directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum
and the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Cost: B

At beginning of year F1
Additions NE

At end of year FR
Accumulated amortisation: 3ok

At beginning of year F7)

Charge for the year F RN

At end of year FAR

Carrying amount at end of year FAREETHE

Current portion included in prepayments,
IR R E D

FEREE D

deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB28,598,000 (2014: RMB29,248,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 27(i).

Lease prepayments represent costs paid to the PRC land bureau
for obtaining land use rights in respect of land located in
Mainland China with a lease period of 50 years when granted.

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

FEATEMR - i R E UKL

14. REVE )

AAREBEEREE @
HEHEEBEERTEHSEFRRREBF AR
B G BRI EMENAAEE
AN, ORd) - REAZER LI RE
BARIEEN, CRD) HEBIREMENR
REENERD () - pfAztHEEE
EHHBRNES —REHSFRERERITIR
Ry NI S e BREFEE KL

EBAIHE R AL -
15. T A EFSFKE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARBTIT
63,806 63,806
63,806 63,806
(9,087) (7,760)
(1,327) (1,327)
(10,414) (9,087)
53,392 54,719
(1,327) (1,327)
52,065 53,392

mpt 27 (W& R —HF+ =
A=+—HB AEBEEEMFEHAR
#28,598,000L (ZZE—H : AR
29,248,00070) M L A E A HRIBE &
W AEARNEEERBITERNER

M E AN IR FE [ B 4 3 B 22 R S A5 AR

1SALPA AR B R BE By T3 &) T 3 5 RO X
R BERENHEER /505
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Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

16.

128

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31 December 2015

At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated amortisation

Additions
Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2015, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 December 2015:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2014

At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated amortisation

Additions
Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2014, net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 December 2014:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

2015 Annual Report —ZE— A F &

16. BEEE
2R+ =-HA=+—H

Certified
emission rights
0 B
RMB’000
ARBT T
R-ZE—hRFE—HA—H"
kR R T #EE 9,606
NE 83
FNEHE R (606)
R-_E—RF+=-_A=+—8"
kR 25T E 9,083
RZE—HF+=-_A=+—8:
BN 12,096
RETH#EGH (3,013)
BRHEF5E 9,083
—E—NE+=-_A=+—H
Certified
emission rights
R BE U
RMB’000
ARETIT
R=-ZE—WF—HF—8"
kR 2T #ESE 10,212
NE _
F N (606)
R-_ZE—NFE+_A=+—H"
kR 25T E 9,606
RZE—WNF+=-_A=+—8:
BN 12,013
RET#H (2,407)
AR F 58 9,606
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—EBEQIRNRE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—ZF-1F —TmF
t=ZA=+—8H +=-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Share of net assets B & EFE - 5,919
The Group holds an 18% equity interest in an associate, AEERABMERANIEREME TR
namely Huaning Flax Electronic Business (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. BERRE (TR ) 8918%MHE - 225
(“Huaning Flax”), which was established on 28 December ERAN-_ZBZEANF+_AZ+TNBEH
2009 in the PRC with registered capital of RMB30,000,000. B 37 - R & A 5 A R #30,000,0007T ©
The principal business of the associate is the sale of linen yarn ZBERNANEIERBRAFEE MY EMNR
products and the provision of transaction services. Although REX IR -BEARNEEREZLB LR
the Group holds less than 20% of the voting power of the WIRERTR20% HERKEAIZEEET
associate, the Group exercises significant influence as the HENBE WAHZMERRTREAY

Group is able to appoint a certain number of its directors. Zho

v

Particulars of the material associate are as follows: Z2EEEENBINFBOT

p=11l

Percentage of
ownership interest

Particulars of  Place of attributable to
Name issued shares held establishment the Group  Principal activities
EN-
FrisE 1T EiEEEE
% BROFHE R BEASL TEXH
Huaning Flax RMB30,000,000  PRC 18%  Sale of linen yarn products
and provision of
transaction services
Rk AR#30,000,000C & 18%  SHETMAEmMRRIEH
R 5 R
As at 1 July 2015, pursuit to the contract signed between RZZE—RF+A—H BERQREWNT
the Company and Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd., the TEREBRNERARAZLNEL  AEH
Group disposed all its equity interest in Huaning Flax with the LAR B AR %5,891,0007T H & H A & 5 Tn
consideration of RMB5,891,000. i ) 2 20 Ps A
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As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+_-H=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of Huaning Flax adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in

the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue
Profit for the year

2015 Annual Report —ZE — A F &3

MEEE

FRBEE

nBAE

FRBEIE

BEFE
AREBEHEGREMELLD
KRERE S

YA
F R

R—EBEQATINERE @
TRBATERDMOVEEBE  EE 5
SR EZELAR  WE HBE HFTER

RFFSEESBEHRR:

2014
—ZE—E
RMB’000
ARBEF T

36,174
1,170
(4,460)

32,884

18%

5,919

9,385
200
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B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

DEFERRED TAX 18. ELEHIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the REBRLERBEERBBENFANZSHN
Group during the year are as follows: s <
Deferred tax assets: EEREEE:
Depreciation
in excess
Allowance Provision  Elimination of of related
for doubtful for unrealised  depreciation
Accruals debts inventories profits allowance Total
il Fh
g RERE
RRER RIEEE FEEE  RERER  BRENEE &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
At T January 2014 RZZF-RE-A—H 4,003 318 1267 947 1340 7,875

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERHARHERR/

the consolidated statement of (BABERFNR)H

profit or loss during the year (note 10)  E3ERIA (F77#10) 1,462 (102) (700) (279) (99) 282
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME+ZA=+t-AR

1 January 2015 “Z-h%-A-H 5,465 216 567 068 1,241 8,157

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERNt AR HHRER/

the consolidated statement of (BAGBRRRINR)H
profit or loss during the year (note 10)  EIERE (f7£10) (2,601) 252 350 63 (641) (2,577)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+ZA=+-H 2,864 468 917 731 600 5,580
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Bt 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 K= ZF

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

A= e — (5]

18. EZEHIE m)

Deferred tax liabilities: EEREAE:
Withholding
tax on Fair value  Depreciation
gains/
undistributed (losses) on allowance
profits of the derivative in excess
Mainland China financial of related
subsidiaries instruments  depreciation Total
hEAE
WEAR {T4EERMIA HESFEEH
RO RNEH MREE  ABFEN
B#/
ik (B8) &8 Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—WE—A—H 6,903 1,955 207 9,065
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FREAMERRNER/
the consolidated statement of (GtABHHERR)N
profit or loss during the year (note 10) BB (Hizt10) 5,761 (1,394) 1,399 5,766
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE-MFE+_A=1—H
1 January 2015 —h¥—HA—H 12,664 561 1,606 14,831
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ENBAEHBRERNGR/
the consolidated statement of (Gt AR HHERR)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) WIERRIE (Hizt10) (2,448) (1,126) 576 (2,998)
At31 December 2015 R-F-AF+t-A=+—H 10,216 (565) 2,182 11,833

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings generated after 31 December 2007.
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18.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 S R B

As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+-H=+—H

18. EZLEHIE m)

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2014

relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets arising from:

— Allowance for doubtful debts

— Provision against inventories

— Elimination of unrealised profits

— Accruals

— Fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments

— Depreciation in excess of related
depreciation allowance

RIERV R ETEERAEERARED
RE A BIRAR NG - RIEM T2 R

B AEENRERIBEGSHONMT

AEEBR-_ZE—RAFR-_ZT—NOF+_H

=+ HEOREFIRE TNIIRIAEM

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—MmF
+=ZB=+—H +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
THSIBEERNIRERIEEE
—REREE 468 216
—FERE 917 567
— AR E IR )R T 731 668
—TBIRE A 2,864 5,465
—PTESmIT AN
NAEEEBE 565 =
—-EBLEBTEREN
oy 600 1,241
6,145 8,157
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 18. EEBIE ()
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —F—mF
+=-HB=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: TS EEEARNRERIASE:
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — A Bl A FEFT B A &
of Mainland China subsidiaries R A E TEF R (10,216) (12,664)
— Depreciation allowance in excess of —MEREBLEENEN
related depreciation Kk (2,182) (1,606)
— Fair value gains on derivative financial ~—#T4& & @ T A#
instruments AREESE - (561)
(12,398) (14,831)
Deferred tax, net EIEF IR TR (6,253) (6,674)
Reflected in the consolidated statement of 74 G B 7 A S5 3% 79 e Ak -
financial position:
— Deferred tax assets — R IBE = 5,935 7,596
— Deferred tax liabilities —IRERIEEE (12,188) (14,270)

As at 31 December 2015, other than the amount recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB319,247,000 at 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB234,618,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

INVENTORIES 19. &
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-mEF
+=ZA=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Raw materials R 178,318 208,587
Work in progress fE& 32,741 27,623
Finished goods RUAK 129,843 60,894
340,902 297,104
As at 31 December 2015, inventories with a carrying amount WK 27V E- R T —AF+ = A
of RMB40,000,000 (2014: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to =+—HB ERETE/ARK40,0000007T
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 27(i). —Z— 4 AK¥40,000,0007T) FE
ETER (ERASEERRITERAE
fRe
TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 20. BWEZRARERRE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—EB-AF —E-mEF
+=—HA=+—H +=ZH=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
Trade receivables U E 5 BRI 226,473 169,676
Notes receivable e 82,263 64,032
Impairment B (1,915) (786)
306,821 232,922
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Bt 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2015 R_-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

20.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group’s notes receivable were all aged within six months
and were neither past due nor impaired.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Within 1 month —EARN

1 to 2 months — & A =/ 1E A
2 to 3 months A1E A = =1E A
Over 3 months =f@AE

2015 Annual Report —E— A F &

20.

FREZRAKREVEE @
BF—RER TEEHHOKREISOK  ETF
EARIZF REEmE - AL I SKIFEER
78 1) SR U (2] B9 B WK FROE - W AR B 1 B Al 20
N EERBRERE - A EREETHE
a4 EINE SRR TG B -

AEENBRERREGRNEAR A E
fEEA TN R (E

RBERR AEEHRWEZRFTIZER
B BB BRI T

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E—-FHF —E—mF
+=ZA=+—8 +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
191,785 68,129
11,969 35,939

13,201 33,132

7,603 31,690
224,558 168,890
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January n—HA—H
Impairment losses accrued REREER
Impairment losses reversed BEEEE D

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB1,915,000 (2014: RMB786,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of RMB3,643,000 (2014:
RMB1,253,000).

The impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

B 8 B N R (B
BH—EARN
BHR—EAE=EHA
BH=EAN L

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

Over 3 months past due

20.

B 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

EWESRAREREE @
JEWE ZERFUR B R EZE T

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—mF
t=A=t—-HB +=H=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREET T

786 1,015

1,129 -

- (229)

1,915 786

LW E S ERFOREREREEIRER
FEWE 5 ER T AR 1,915,000 (=&
—F: AR¥786,0000T)  BERIRE S
A ARES 643,000 (ZFE—F: AR
#1,253,0007T ) °

ERERYE S RKER AT BRAEN TP
BB JAFHE R Y m AR e YRR -

I FE 18 51| 2 5= BB 1R A3 IR (B HY e W 5 BR R A
RREC DATAA T -

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—mF
+=-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
183,505 148,628

8,281 9,980

25,170 6,431

5,874 3,384

222,830 168,423
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Bt 5 S ARk B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

20.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amount of the trade and notes receivables
approximates to their fair value due to their short term maturity.

Notes receivable that are not derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB14,815,000 (31
December 2014: RMB12,026,000) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risks relating to these Endorsed Notes, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by
the Endorsed Notes to which the suppliers have recourse was
RMB14,815,000 (31 December 2014: RMB12,026,000) as at
31 December 2015.
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TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB8,942,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB25,580,000). The Derecognised Notes had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC,
the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Notes. Accordingly, it has derecognised the
full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Notes and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes are not
significant.

The Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes in 2015 (2014: Nil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the continuing
involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
Endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TEfT K
Prepaid land lease payment due
within one year

Deposits and other receivables

IR
R & E A e W IR

20.

21.

R—FREHN A E

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

FREZRAKREVEZEE @
PEHARILBEIANERERE
N-E—RAF+-_A=+—H KEEMH
HETHENSEE THRREMRITEN
MEWER (KR IEERER])  REBH
B ARYS8,942,000c (ZE—WMFE+ =4
=+—H: AR#25,580,0007T) ' A& EIE
NZEHRERNENBEZERR RIEERE
ERmSHRET—= /5@ A8 REE - R
PREREL KEEZBNFEAGRERT
BRIRITEANFRAASERIER ([FHE
28]|) - FEERA AEEEEBRFBALIL
BREEMNE NI R RE R E i &
SEERIERRILERAZRRAAEENE
SEFNEBRMSTE - AEERFERELK
IR R R IE O ZE R LR R AR R,
RESRENTaBRERBENEHEER
PRC-EFRA AEERFELMEK EHER
ZENAABELTTEK

R-T—h%F AEELRNERRIER
SRENRATASZABER(ZF N
FE) ARERFAR R EERSE
SENIASEIER - FEDNFARFY
e

TN & R H b B WKIE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-HE —E—OFE
+=ZA=+—8H +Z—H=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T
3,260 4,430

1,327 1,159

23,639 39,454

28,226 45,043
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

21.

PP

23.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other

receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short
term maturity.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

Huaning Flax Rt on il

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Liabilities)/Assets: (Bl BE:
Foreign exchange forward contracts HNEEHIE 4
— current —BNHR

The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage some
of its foreign currency transaction exposures. These currency
forward contracts are not designated as cash flow, fair value
or net investment hedges and are entered into for periods
consistently with foreign currency transaction exposures,
generally from one to twelve months. These contracts will
mature within 2016.

The derivatives are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2015.
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21.

2P

23.

AR HE R H M ERFRIE m@m

LR ESRAERE T EREEEEN
B

bt EERRREHIINERE 5t A Ll S &R
F) S B S BT HA NP R HE R RO 8% ) R WK SRR
B

HREHRE REAMK B RELE
WA RS EEE AR EERE -
ey — BB & R BRI

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-FHEF —E—F
+=g=+-8 +=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T
- 100
PTEERT A
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-iF —E-mEF
+=ZB=+—H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
(2,258) 2,244

AEEERERERSNEREROINE
RHEE ZEEBERAOREBEELARE
ME R EBESFREL I Mal LA H
FEINEZFEBR R (—RE—E+ @
R) - ZEEHRNR T —RFRNEH-

R-BE-RF+_A=+—H TEITAR

AREEE-
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS

R MRITHERR
£ #TF K

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans
Pledged deposits for forward contracts
Pledged deposits for notes payable

Cash and cash equivalents REMREEFEED
Denominated in RMB A REEGTHE
Denominated in HK$ B TTEHE
Denominated in EUR AR TTEHE
Denominated in USD AZETTEHE
Denominated in other currencies LA fth & #ETE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s pledged deposits with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB41,511,000 (2014:
RMB29,751,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted
to the Group as set out in note 27(i), a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB10,300,000 (2014: RMB13,795,000) was
pledged to secure notes payable and the rest of RMB8,540,000
(2014: RMB25,640,000) was pledged to secure forward
contracts.

B B RLIRTT B e 1 R
ERERAOERNER (8,540)
ERE N RBIEROEFER

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

BERBEESEYUARSERER

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-EF —T-mE
t=RA=t+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®T T ARETTT
297,565 286,371
(41,511) (29,751)
(25,640)
(10,300) (13,795)
237,214 217,185
183,942 222,051
4,978 6,095
55,730 8,353
52,543 48,648
372 1,224
297,565 286,371

AR A AR S5 - AT 1R
B B AR GNEER D) R (BE -
EERNEETRET) AEEREEEE
B (TOME 2 TER0RITI AR R AR
fto 95 o

MM E27 (VT8 R —HF+ =
A=+—HB AKBEEBIFEHNAR
#41,511,000c (ZZE— PN F: AR
29,751,00070) M BB FRE FTE#H - &
AALBERBITEROER RAFHELY
AR #10,300,000C (ZE—HF: AR
13,795,0007T) B F &R - {ERIEN EIBME
1R Hex AR#8,540,0007T (T — P04 :
AER#25,640,0007T) TE TEIF - {EREH]
BHIHER
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As at 31 December 2015 RKZ=ZF

25. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

A= e — (]

An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at 31

December 2015, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

Due within 1T month or on demand
Due after T month but within 3 months

—fEARBI BN ERKEGEER
—1& A A1 1B =& A A 2 &

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.

The carrying amount of trade and notes payables at the end of
each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to

their short term maturity.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Advances from customers
Accruals
Other payables

BEFE BN
BIRE M
H & B0R

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.

The carrying amount of other payables and accruals at the end
of each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to

their short term maturity.
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25. ENEZRE
)5/\\_?

AR ENRE
AFE+-A=+—H REXREH

B O EH A E SRR R BN RIERRE DT

LN

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—E—-HEF —E—mF
+=B=+—8H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBTIT
52,518 35,744

45,530 115,456

98,048 151,200

MEHRRBEERETFAE - RERSH
X EEEALHHWZ@JHH R & 5 AR 2 R

NEBEMNERmeEHEE A AEBERS -
26. HttENREBERFAREH
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-WF
+=B=+-8 +-A=t-"
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T ARBEF T
8,411 13,506
3,707 2,545
39,344 41,541
51,462 57,592

RBDEBEERRTHE -RER
K EEEC%JEHW HR - BUE At A R E
REANEESEERERN

=5
2 T8
REERE
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. iTESBTREE
2015 2014
~B-1F T-IF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB’000
BERAIE EBAME
(%) 0 AR%TrR (%) HE ARETT
Current B
Secured bank loans BERRITEHK 3.06 - 5.40 2016 90,708 6.00 2015 110,300
Unsecured bank loans EEMRITER 1.97 -5.09 2016 277,325 3.70-4.50 2015 120,575
Subtotal e 368,033 230,875
Non-current FE BN
Secured bank loans BERRTER - 7.36 2018 50,000
Total #@ct 368,033 260,875
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E—-hfF —T—F
+=A=+-B +=A=t+-A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: JEEBIRITER -
Within one year —FR 368,033 230,875
In the second year FF - =
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EERAF(BREEEMRTE) - 50,000
Beyond five years RAFENRE - =
368,033 280,875
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

227/

(i)

(i)

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Note:

As at 31 December 2015, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB90,708,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, inventories and pledged deposits of
the Group with carrying amounts of RMB70,282,000 (2014:
RMB64,122,000), RMB28,598,000 (2014: RMB29,248,000),
RMB40,000,000 (2014: RMB40,000,000) and RMB41,511,000
(2014: RMB29,751,000), respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, there were no non-current interest-
bearing bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2014, the non-
current interest-bearing bank borrowings with a carrying amount
of RMB50,000,000 were secured by certain property, plant and
equipment with a carrying amount of RMB43,315,000

The carrying amount of the current interest-bearing bank loans of the

Group approximates to their fair value due to their short term maturity.

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank borrowings

have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows

using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit

risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk

for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014 was

assessed to be insignificant. Management has assessed that the carrying

amount of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans of the Group

approximates to the fair value due to their floating interest rate.
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27/

STEBITEE @

At

(i)

(i)

MR

RZZE—RFE+-A=+—8B EES
%8 A A R#90,708,0007T H) B HA 5t 5 4R
TEENAEEREESEIIRAR
¥70,282,000c (ZZE—WF: AR
64,122,0007T) * A R #28,598,0007T ( =
T —F: AR¥29,248,0000T) * AR
#¥40,000,000C (ZZE—WF: AR
40,000,0007T ) & A R #41,511,0007T ( =
T—pu4F : AR#29,751,0007T) & T
¥ WEREE TwHEEMRE T8
R B ERERIEER -

R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—8 WEFEH
HABRITEE R —NHF+=A
=+—H " ERALEAARE50,000,0007T
SERHAG BERITHEEUNRESEAAR
#43,315,0007CH A T - B R iE1E
AR o

HNE - MAEEAAG B RITERD

FRESHEENABERS-

RN B RITEEN A ABEREANAEE
PUER - EERR RFSRFERN TANRTH X
FRBPRKRREREAE - R_F—NF+ =
A=+—R AEEAXHHFASRTEENTE
WA E AL NEK < REIEE MR AE
B e JERN IRt BRITE R AN F BRI RG B
WEERSHEEENARBEES-
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+-H=+—H

ISSUED CAPITAL 28. BEBITRAK
Group and Company AEERAEART
Authorised: EE
2015 2014
—B-1% e
Number Amount Number Amount
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
REG&E 8 RO EE 8
THER THL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEOVETHLER  3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
2015 2014
~2-1f —F-mF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BRHEE £ PGE ! £
HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
Fnr AR%®TR TEr ARETR
(%8) (%)
At 1 January “—A—H 631,600,000 6,316 6,345 631,600,000 6,316 6,345
Shares repurchased BEfR {5 (1,922,000) (19) (16) = = =
At 31 December W+=R=1—H 629,678,000 6,297 6,329 631,600,000 6,316 6,345

The Company purchased 1,922,000 of its shares on the Stock
Exchange in March and April 2015 at a total consideration of
RMB2,034,000. The purchased shares were cancelled during
the year and the issued capital of the Company was reduced by
the par value thereof. The premium paid on the purchase of the
shares of RMB2,018,000 has been charged to share premium of
the Company.

N-_E—AF=AKMA  KABEEZAT
880 E1,922,00008 8 0 BREABARE
2,034,0007T ° i B 8 A& (7 B RN FE RNFESE © M
RARBEITRAE I2E BEE T AER
B8 B AR 1 B 2 AR B A R #52,018,0007T
EEAR RN RENR -
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As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+-H=+—H

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers, customers,
agents, partners, advisers or contractors of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 15 November
2006 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$0.01 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to three
years and ends on a date which is not later than four years from
the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.
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ARERA—BEERETS ([5181]) - R
UAKEEBAEHERMNAERSEA
REMBREEMR -FAENAERZEA
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BR#ESE
The following share options were outstanding under the FAEEETEARTTENBRENT
Scheme during the year:
2015
—E—RE
Exercise price Number
HK$ of options
per share ‘000
TREE BRERAE
BRET T
At 1 January n—HA—H - =
Granted during the year FRKRE 2.00 22,250
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—8” 2.00 22,250
No share options were exercised during the year. FARWEBAIREEITE
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RIS BAR M ARTTRBRERTTRE RITRE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HAnR
Number of
options Exercise price*  Exercise period
BRERE TREMEr TS
‘000 HK$ per share
T BRET
6,675 2.0 24/2/2016-23/8/2019
—E-RE_AZTHEE-ZT-AENAZTZ=H
15,575 2.0 24/8/2017-23/8/2019
—EtFNAZTHEBE=FT-AFN\AZ+=H
22,250
¢ The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment g TEHETTHR - BTTATIR BN 2 AR AN 3

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$2,680,000 (equivalent to RMB2,208,000) (2014:Nil),
of which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$1,986,000 (equivalent to RMB1,636,000) (2014: Nil)
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

HFUEZZ A ER T - BB 7T (218
HIEH FE -

F R AR A A S E {8 52,680,000
B (HER AR®?2,208,000L) (=&
—NE:E) EFASEEREE=FT—A
FH+_A=+—BLFEERBERERX
1,986,000/ 7T (HEER AR®1,636,0007T)
(ZZ—mF: &) -
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As at 31 December 2015 K= ZF

29.

A= e — (5]

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Share options
granted on
24 August 2015

Dividend yield (%) 5.86
Spot stock price (HK$ per share) 1.28
Historical volatility (%) 41.49
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.96
Expected life of options (year) 4.00
Weighted average share price

(HK$ per share) 1.47

Including in the newly granted share options in 2015,
2,500,000 share options were granted to one major supplier
who is the Group’s largest supplier, 8,000,000 share options
were granted to four sales agencies who are the main agencies
located in Europe and 4,500,000 share options were granted
to three enterprise development consultants who provided the
professional services to the Group. Since the services received
by the Group from the supplier, sales agencies and enterprise
development consultants cannot be measured reliably, the
services are measured by reference to the fair value of the
options granted which amounted to HK$1,664,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,371,000).

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Company had no share options
exercised under the Scheme.
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RHKBRE

A% B2 (%) 5.86

RERE (BRABT) 1.28

J_EE/BZ'FEE %) 41.49

8 1 2K (%) 0.96

Eﬁﬂﬂéi@iﬁi,ﬂsﬁ (%) 4.00

hnigeFEHaRE

(FBT) 1.47
RZE—RAFHBRLNBERERE R

2,500, ooof‘ﬁﬁﬂﬂéﬂk% HEEHER

(MEASBE /& AHER) @ 8,000,000

BRERTHEHEERRE (RBUNNEER
3E) ' 4,500,00010 EIRER T =R R AEE
REEERBENCEZREREM AR AR
W EugtER HERBROCEREBENE
SRR T RER] Seit At 2 - Bt B AR T
2E IR ERREN A R EED 664,000/ 7T
(FBER ARE1,371,0007T) 51 E °
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Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
shareholders’ total capital contributions to Hong Kong
Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange therefor as at the date of
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 November 2006.

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to transfer at
least 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses
and convert into share capital by the issue of new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the Scheme are included in note 29 to the
financial statements.

30.
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H
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FARKREFEEHERNAKE S HEn
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SOHRE
EHFEEEASREARR MV R £
Mo ASEETEM ([EA]) UEHRER
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

30. RESERVES (continued)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share
premium account are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@ As lessor
The Group leases its investment property (note 14 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms of two years. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Less than one year —&FR

2015 Annual Report —ZE— A F &

30. &% @

B EE

B aERNERSFHSHERAREES -
RIERASEERRE  MEBEEZRDIKKE
BEIZ ARARIREMN B BEKBREPEE
RHEAER - AR aBRANES AT DR T
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31.

REHEERE

(@)

ERHBEA

AEERELEHERHHERRKRSE
ME(MBRRHF14) ZFHE
RERNFHAME L EHEN G
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AIRIRE R e T E ISR 2 F 5

%o

R-E—RAFE+-_A=+—H K&
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EHUTFHANRRREBEREK
FIELAEE

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—Z2-1% —F-nmF
+=A=+-8R +-A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARET T
420 -

420 -
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from three to five years, and those for
office equipment are for terms ranging between two and
five years.

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were payable as
follows:

Less than one year

In the second to fifth year FE_ZERF

The Group leases certain properties located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and ltaly as the Group's offices. The
leases run for an initial period of three to five years.

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments in respect of the purchase of items of
property, plant and equipment outstanding as at 31 December
but not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for SHED)
Authorised, but not contracted for EREERETL

31.

32.

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

REHERE @

(b) EHREBEA
AEEREBGCEHELHEREET
WMAEMERBEYE - ZEMED
HELEENFENT=ZFZRHF
MRAERENHERUNNTRER
Ao
N HEEEHER SN IA TN FHifE
i

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

—E-FF —E—MmF

+=BA=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT

2,211 1,779

812 771

3,023 2,550

AEBERBEKNE  HEREANFHE

BETHEEAREENRAE - H)
WHEBHA=ERF-

BERAE

FHREEVE BELRRBRENTZA
=+— BRARZMELREFEHRE QTR

BERNEAREENT
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
i —T-pEF
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T
97,230 32,832
- 70,000
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As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+-H=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with the company controlled by one
of the Company’s directors

(@)

(b)

(i)

(if)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group leased offices and manufacturing facilities
located in Mainland China from Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom Creative”) and
incurred operating lease charges of RMB500,000
(2014: RMB500,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in Kingdom Creative.

On 1 July 2015, the Group disposed of the
investment in Huaning Flax to Kingdom Creative
and obtained a consideration of RMB5,891,000.
Mr. Ren Weiming, has a controlling equity interest
in Kingdom Creative.

The lease expenses were made according to published

prices and conditions offered by the lessor to its major

customers.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Short term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

R HE B A& F
RERL 1218 A

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s

emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial

statements.

The related party transactions in respect of note (a) above

also constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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33. BELTRS
HARAT —BRESEZEHFHNAT
BETHNRS

(@)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

REE—_ZT—AF+_A=1+—
HIEFE  ANEBAATNISEA
¥R ERAR ([SEAZE])
H A Z (B Rz 7 B K B 9 3% A
ENEERE  TEEMSEH
EE&H A AR500,0007T (=
Z—Pu4F : AR#500,0007T) °
EHERR L EH A ZRIEMNE
IR #E 2 o

R-TE—RAFLtA—HB A&
EEmeEaELEHENER
DR E ESREARE
5,891,000 C E PR CE R
TIEAIFER TR

HEERNREALEARNEEER
FiR#tm e XM ER R IGEL -

FEEIEEEASHEE
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  ARETT
4,579 4,516
153 157
4,732 4,673

EENERSTHRAEMENE — P
BEN BRI EES o

£ XH (@ R B BEE T5 X 5 TME K
RERS (EER LEMARAEHTA

B)e



34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-ZE—AF+-H=+—H

financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2015

Financial assets

Trade and notes receivables

Financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged deposits

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loans STRIBITER

Financial liabilities included in
other payables TRAE
Trade and notes payables

Dividend payable e AR 2

ST AR At & IR Y

RNEZEFRENRE

Financial liabilities at fair value R AR BETABZEH

A
through profit or loss TRIBE

BRERSENEMTA

RBEHR SR SRTENKRESRN

T
—ZE—HEF
SHMEE
Loans and
receivables
BREK
PR R IE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
EWE SRR R EREE 306,821
FFARS REMBERFIENSREE
23,639
HehkReFED 237,214
[ ETEE N 60,351
628,025
Eal- =R
Financial
Financial liabilities
liabilities at fair value
at amortised  through profit
cost or loss Total
RE A RAREHE
SIER Y STABEHN
SRAE cHBeE HEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARET R AR¥T R
368,033 - 368,033
39,344 - 39,344
98,048 - 98,048
187 - 187
- 2,258 2,258
505,612 2,258 507,870

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZERERE Q7
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

2014

Financial assets

Trade and notes receivables
Financial assets included in

deposits and other receivables & @& &=
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY
Pledged deposits SR EFER

Financial assets at fair value

TREE

through profit or loss

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade and notes payables
Dividend payable
Amount due to an associate
Financial liabilities included

in other payables and accruals

154
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W E 5 R IR IR
ST AR S I H 8 U IR A

BRBEFABZEN

SERITER

e B BBk
AR
JEAS — PR Bt

TRIBE

34. REN2ENEMIAE@w
—Z—mF
ERMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
Loans and  through profit
receivables or loss Total
BAREBE
B K& FFAEES
JEWRIE SEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T ARET T ARBEF T
232,922 - 232,922
39,454 - 39,454
217,185 - 217,185
69,186 - 69,186
- 2,244 2,244
558,747 2,244 560,991
cRAasE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
R SR AN BR
NEEBE
RMB’000
ARBEF T
280,875
RRERNEE 151,200
4
=WNGIE/ ] 100
FTAEMENFIBELTERER N
41,541
473,720



35.

Notes to Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

35.

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

TRIBENAARBERAIAEE
S
AEECRITANEERSBERAAEE (H
FHeREAABESEREERIMN N
T

Carrying amounts Fair values

REEHE AREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-Hf ZZE—@mNF ZT-HF Z—ZT—WEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR%¥TR ARETT

Financial (liabilities)/assets tR(8E) EE

Derivative financial instruments TESHIA (2,258) 2,244 (2,258) 2,244

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits, current interest-bearing bank loans, trade
and notes payables, an amount due to an associate, a dividend
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments. The carrying
amount of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans of the
Group approximates to their fair value because the loans have
a floating interest rate.

RERENE R LREFEY BK
BHEARBKER FFABENT HE R
Hip BRI S REE  CHEMER B
HIFFBRITER BNESRRRENR
B BN —EBEARNE  BAKRE FTA
Hip e AR ERANSRAB BN AR
BEEEERESHEES T2ANKETIA
AR EI P B - N B A IE AV AR BRTT
EXHRIRFHNERGE  MERESEE
HARBEEE

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z = KRAR A 7
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As at 31 December 2015 R - ZE—AF+-H=+—H

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015, the marked to market value of the
derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment
attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the
financial instruments recognised at fair value.
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35.

EMIENAIAEBERAAEE
EREREw
UAEENELEAENTHKIaEEES
MTEAAEBETFZENER MIZERF UKL
BEEEANVKBEREZEZESER - NS
WEBE BB Mem T ANEEE
WEFHEMRANEZEGAE - HERY
BKHERE I EREZEeeTFIm
HEBRE MERMXAEITHE R FETS

2#H,-

TREENBENAAEBERENRZS (&
HBENERIN FETERRXBRT AN
TRARKRe

AEFRRZEH T (EERRAAEER
AN TREEBE)ITUTESRIE -T4S
BTR(BREMERSH) DA EEY
EE MR LM A ERDFE (KA
BREE) RERUAANT ZRIENT
BABRBAE BREFINEERYE.
SINGEE BIVER K% i HA B 2% BRI R i 4R - SR HA
BHNRESRERE A EEAR -
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EBHORBREBENEEFEAR - BFHER
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

B 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZFE—AF+=-HA=+—H

%.ﬁﬂlﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ&@ﬁﬁﬁ

ﬁuFﬁ%%%%
T§%m$$léﬂlﬁm AABEHEE
ZeHE

BAARBEEFENEE:

Fair value measurement using

RRAUTRERTNAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZE-RF  REBDSE EATEE EAFTEE
+=A K} E BAE LIPN |
=t-H -8B E ] F=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®BTRT AR¥T=R
Financial liabilities at fair value through &AL {EEFTA
profit or loss — foreign exchange forward ~ #BHEFEREE
contracts —SMNEERHAH (2,258) - (2,258) -

(2,258) - (2,258) -

Fair value measurement using

RANTHEBETNALERRNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“E-mFE RERTS  EAUBR EATATEER
+=A KR (E @AE BAE
=t—H FB F_E F=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Non-current interest-bearing bank RN R RITEE
borrowings 50,000 - 50,000 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 R {E{EFTA
or loss — foreign exchange forward BamemEE
contracts —INERBE L 2,244 = 2,244 -

52,244 - 52,244 -

RBE-_T-—AFt_A=T—HLEFE"
R BEFEEF ERF EZF&WE%?%E
B EBAE-EIEF=EEL-

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial liabilities other than derivatives
comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade and notes payables,
a dividend payable, an amount due to an associate and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various financial assets such as trade and notes receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits
and cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

2015 Annual Report —ZE— A F &

36.

MEEEEEEERBEE

AEENETZEHMEE (TTETARKRINE
BRABRRTER BNEIRALENE
B EMRE BN —REBEQRFERE
ENKE ZEeRABEIEENEAN
SERHERZXBRAFES ARBHEZ
BREANEHMEE NERKE SRR KLER
S8 BN B MEMEKFR - 2B
FRARBRERREEHEY DERARLE
ERMmES

AEETETITETARS T EREED
EHAK BEREEEASELERARENR
IRELNEEER -

AEENERTAEENTIRRARSNERE
% SNERR - FEERMRBERR BF
SiRaT Wi T X E IR & R R AR o
AEBEABITETENSFTHRIAR M B R
RMTEE2.4

) 2= &
AREBENT SN RS E R T B EAKER
FEN R ENRTEREH - AKEYL E
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As at 31 December 2015 R _-E—AF+-H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. AR EEEEREE @

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax for the year (through
the impact on the floating rate borrowings). The change in
interest rates has no impact on the Group’s equity excluding
retained profits.

2015 —E-FHF
RMB AR
RMB AR
2014 —ZE—pE
RMB ARE
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in USS$,
EURs and HK$, which are currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group, and expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

F = E B ()
TRETENBEMEHT LR  AEEF
AR T A F S R A B A RE S B BURE
(BREFEFREENTE) - FIRESFHY
AEBENEZE (REB BRI BT E -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in

interest rate  profit before tax

A= B B AT 5

ERA(CFE) & ORD)
RMB’000
ARBTR
(1%) 132
1% (132)
(1%) 108
1% (108)
S LB

SME R RRINEEXRZEBMEN ST A
BARBEIARKESRERB N ER A
SEMIMNERE B TRKE SRR BN
PR M ERTTAE R SE AR R B M) RE B 5
B8 MAET BT RETINE  EAKEE
LN e o
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Bt 5 S AR B

As at 31 December 2015 K= ZF

36.

A= e — (5]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and EURs, as described in note 23.
It is the Group'’s policy to ensure that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
a fixed rate where necessary to address short term imbalances.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will continue to consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the US$, EUR and HK$ exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities including foreign currency derivatives). The change
in foreign currency exchange rate has no impact on the equity
excluding retained profits.

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-=—1fF

TZA=+—HLFE
WARBREXTES
WARBERETER

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$
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36.

BH¥EREEEERBEK @
SR BE ()
NPt EE23 F Al - AN BB BE] S IMERBIA
KT ELHE G SN TS LATE JT BT HIME A 8
EREASARBEESNERR HhHEEE
HNERBS - REBHBRANEEERKEB
RETEERE A E NSRRI 2P
R B FRERFIRAESKE - EEE
A B I SN NE R R - WA L A B
SE T A (NSRRI 4) $ ) E KIMNE
[E & o

TRBTREMBHEMBEH I ER NEER
BADGNEET BT KB TEX SRR
FHNBRE (AREREERAGE(RE
SNESTET R ) AR EEEE) < INEEX

ZEf RS (REBENRINTEZE-
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
exchange rate before tax
IPEEER BRBE AT
EFH (T #h CE2)

% RMB’000

AR%Tx

5 8,119
(5) 8,119)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$

Year ended 31 December 2015

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

HE_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—HLEE
AR K 53
AR RS

BE-_ZT—EfF
+t=ZBA=+—RBHLEE
MAREHBTES
MAREHRBTER

IS & B ()

HEEBEEEEREE @

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
exchange rate before tax
SN [ 2= B 75 A1 g A
EF(TR) 8/ Cfd)
% RMB’000
ARET T
5 2,751
(5) (2,751)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
exchange rate before tax
IPEEER RRBE AT R
ER (R 8 OF)
% RMB’000
ARET
5 (4,429)
(5) 4,429
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

Year ended 31 December 2015

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$
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36. AR EEEEREE @

M R B (s

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

exchange rate before tax

SN [ 2= B A5 A1 g A

EF () 8/ Cfd)

% RMB’000

ARET T

HE-_ZT—UF
TZA=T—RILFE

AR S BUTESS 5 2,621
AR N BUTER (5) (2,621)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

exchange rate before tax

IPEEER R B A2

ER (TR 8 OF)

% RMB’000

AR%T

BE-Z-4F
TZA=t—HLEE

MARMRBTES 5 (1,972)
MARBRBTER (5) 1,972
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As at 31 December 2015 R-ZFE—AF+=-HA=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MBEAREREBBERBEXw
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S LB (a0
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
exchange rate before tax

SN B = B B A A
EFCRER) s ORd)

%o RMB’000
AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2014 BHE_Z—NF
TZA=+—RHILFE
If RMB weakens against HK$ AR N B TESS 5 305
If RMB strengthens against HK$ WMARBHETHE R (5) (305)
Credit risk EEmRRE
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its EERBIEERHFHEREBTENER
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, TEAESREFALE NTHETIMERTKIEL
leading to a financial loss. The Group's credit risk is primarily BWER AEENEERRTEZREEKE
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and 5 8RR W AR DA S 1R & I B Ah JRE LK
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and BH-BERECHIGEERR UHEEEE
the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis. SRR AEEHEREESNETLEN
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring EEFETEER -
credit over a certain amount.
Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group's EEEERBRASEFHRTFEERRE
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer EEE’JE%EEZ TREFREEETER TP
credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is MESEEREBERREREFETMG
assessed through credit verification procedures.
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which AEEHEMEREE (BREREIREEE
comprise cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits, have W B BHEFER) ZeNEERRBSENZ
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ETANRETHE-
instruments.
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As at 31 December 2015 R - E—AF+_-H=+—H

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEMEEEREREE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE @
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HRAEEERERTEEERINE=A
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. EITRG ALBAKRERR - FEEETF
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ RBRIEERF /HFFER -ARKEEE
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit WEGERANEFEREZ DB MAEE
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s W RENEEEF R -
trade receivables are widely dispersed.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure BRAAEERBEEWE SERREREEL
to credit risk arising from trade and notes receivables are EE R E — S BURN I 1 KM T
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements. 202 5% °
Liquidity risk i B 1 L B
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the T RAEBRBERARN SR A EDHB
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted R (RE YRR
payments, was as follows:
As at 31 December 2015
R=Z-E%+=A=+-H
Less than 3to12 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
EER  OR=ER =Zt-fA —Enf SREE At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TRT ARBTRT ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R
Interest-bearing bank loans STRRTER - 78,684 295,819 - - 374,503
Trade and notes payables ENESRFRENRE 52,518 45,530 - - - 98,048
Dividend payable FERRR & 187 - - - - 187
Other payables and accruals HitENERERER 39,344 - - - - 39,344
92,049 124,214 295,819 - - 512,082
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEMREEEREREE @
AND POLIC' ES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TE MR )
As at 31 December 2014
RZZ2-mE+-A=+-AH
Less than 3t012 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
B2%  IR=ER =ZE+_fEA —E0F SZRAE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TR ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%T:R
Interest-bearing bank loans FERTEHR - 30,854 210,583 59,276 - 300,713
Trade and notes payables ENESRFRENRE 35,744 115,456 - - - 151,200
Dividend payable MRS 4 - - - - 4
Other payables and accruals HitENFERRRER 41,541 - - - - 41,541
77,289 146,310 210,583 59,276 - 493,458
Capital management EXEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the Group's objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

AEBEEREENEEBERRERNEER
BIREMBES THFRENEARLLE B
XREEBRRERFMERAEE-

AEBEIBHEARERE  WHETLBEAR D
SEEL AR  BERFNAREARERE K
SEUTAZRRKRERMSORE  MRRREE
BASBETHRG RBEZZT—AF+=
A=+—HBHRk=_Z—NF+-_A=+—H1t
FE AEEVELGEATENERZR BEK
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank loans, trade and notes payables, amount
due to an associate and other payables and accruals, less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to
the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:
Interest-bearing bank loans SFERITER
Trade and notes payables JERTE SRR R BN R
Amount due to an associate J& A5 — ) Bt 5 12 B 5RIE
Other payables and accruals Ht BN RIANTERRE M
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BHE RIREEEY
Net debt (EEEE:
Total equity Tz AR R
Capital and net debt BARRERFHE
Gearing ratio BEHLE

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37.

On 18 March 2016, the board of directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share
totalling approximately RMB42,204,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015, which is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (note 11).

2015 Annual Report —ZE— A F &

HEEBEEEEREE @

BEARERE @)
AEBFHEELXREEER AFEERR
EABEEFERUE N EEINERS FRE (&
HFEBENBRITER BNESERAK
JET 55 - e —FAIBE 2 A Bl I A R EA
JENFIERTERER  BRERERREEE
Yo BARABIET N a1 B AEGER KR
EHARMEBELRERNT ¢

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E—AfF —T N
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT
368,033 280,875

98,048 151,200

- 100

43,051 57,592
(237,214) (217,185)
271,918 272,582
1,043,978 961,662
1,315,896 1,234,244

21% 22%

REHEEE

R_B—R"F=ZA+/\B ARAREEERE
FRHE—T-AF+_A=t+—HILEE
KBRS 0B IL M RS - & HL
AR #42,204,0007T © f& BZAELL AR A B IR
RIEERRE AT K EHfE (FFaE11) ©
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AATHMBKEMRE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the BEARRANRERHROPBARRROER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: LUNNE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—mF
+=H=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARINIKE 372,791 372,791
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 372,791 372,791
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGO 319,847 284,532
Cash and cash equivalents Re RS FEY 2,946 619
Total current assets mEEELE 322,793 285,151
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H At - 5RIA - 199
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFRIRITEE 38,538 —
Dividend payables JEAS AR B 187 4
Amount due to subsidiaries NG E ] 6,874 4,971
Total current liabilities nBBERE 45,599 5,174
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 277,194 279,977
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERAERRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 649,985 652,768
Net assets BEFE 649,985 652,768
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 6,329 6,345
Reserves (note) s (K7aE) 643,656 646,423
Total equity SR 649,985 652,768

Ren Weiming Shen Yueming
E4 A ;L
Director Director
EF EF
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38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

38. AR B BRI E @0

Note: Bt o
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RNRAIEBERE T -
(@  Company (@) Vi N/NE]|
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Share Contributed option retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
(RitE#R)/
R4 EE BB BRERE REBF st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-—ME-A—AH 273,407 370,213 - (34,115) 609,505
Profit for the year EREA - - - 36,918* 36,918
At31 December 2014 and 1~ R =T —M4F
January 2015 TZA=T—BR
—Z-1%-A-H 273,407 370,213 = 2,803 646,423
Profit for the year ERH T - - = 34,985* 34,985
Final 2014 dividend declared EBEEER=F—MF
B E - - - (37,370) (37,370)
Stock repurchase BERG (2,018) = = = (2,018)
Equity-settled share option RS E R R B
arrangements - - 1,636 - 1,636
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-R%+-A
=+-H 271,389 370,213 1,636 418 643,656
Contributed surplus BB

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of Hong Kong Kingdom at the date of the Reorganisation over

the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange

therefor.

* Profit for the year of 2015 includes dividends from subsidiaries
attributable to previous years’ profits RMB39,625,000 (2014:
RMB39,500,000)

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March
2016.
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BABKRENEARRBESERMNAREE
R AN B AR A A T B AT A AR A T (B O BER

* —E A FFREFIEIERE N E L Al fE
158 11 F 2w F 8 iR BN R #39,625,000
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